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To the shareholders of PROMOTORA DE INFORMACIONES, S.A.:

Audit report on the consolidated financial statements

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of PROMOTORA DE INFORMACIONES, S.A.
(the parent) and its subsidiaries (the Group), which comprise the consolidated balance sheet at
December 31, 2020, the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity, the consolidated cash flow
statement, and the notes thereto, for the year then ended.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view, in all
material respects, of consolidated equity and the consolidated financial position of the Group at
December 31, 2020 and of its financial performance and its consolidated cash flows, for the year
then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, as adopted by the
European Union (IFRS-EU), and other provisions in the regulatory framework applicable in Spain.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with prevailing audit regulations in Spain. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements section of our report.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the ethical requirements, including those related
to independence, that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements in Spain as
required by prevailing audit requlations. In this regard, we have not provided non-audit services nor
have any situations or circumstances arisen that might have compromised our mandatory
independence in a manner prohibited by the aforementioned requirements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.
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Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our audit opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Recoverability of deferred tax assets

Description

Our
response

As explained in notes 4.m) and 19.b) to the accompanying consolidated financial
statements, during 2020 the Group canceled tax credits, generating higher tax
expense amounting to 64,108 thousand euros, related primarily to the derecognition
of tax credits of the consolidated tax group in Spain. The assessment of the
recoverable amount of deferred tax assets requires that management make complex
judgments about the future taxable profits of Group companies, based on a
reasonable period and the expected level of profits, using financial projections and
business plans.

Due to the high component of judgment associated with these estimates and the
significance of the amounts involved, we determined this to be a key audit matter.

In this regard, our audit procedures included:

Understanding the Group's policies and procedures for analyzing the
recoverability of deferred tax assets, including an assessment of the design and
implementation of the relevant controls.

Checking that the projections used to evaluate the recoverability of the tax
credit are consistent with the business plans approved by management and
evaluating the reasonableness of the related hypotheses.

Checking the adequacy of the assumptions used in the projections against
prevailing tax requlations with the involvement of our tax specialists.

Checking that the disclosures made in the notes to the consolidated financial
statement comply with the applicable financial reporting framework.

Measurement of goodwill and investments accounted for using the equity method

Description

As explained in Notes 6 and 8 to the accompanying consolidated financial statements,
at December 31, 2020, the Group recognized goodwill totaling 112,501 thousand
euros, investments accounted for using the equity method amounting to 24,679
thousand euros, and impairment losses amounting to 16,602 thousand and 10,411
thousand euros, respectively.

At least annually the Group perform impairment tests of goodwill and, when required,
depending on the existence of indicators of impairment, other impairment test for the
participations registered under the equity method. The purpose of this analysis is to
conclude whether it is necessary to recognize an impairment loss against the
aforementioned assets when the carrying amount is higher than the recoverable
amount. To determine the recoverable amount, Group management tests for
impairment using the discounted free cash flow method.

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
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Due to the high risk that some of these assets may be impaired, the relevance of the
amounts involved and the fact that the analyses conducted by Group management
require complex estimates and judgments, we determined the measurement of these
assets to be a key audit matter.

Our
response In this regard, our audit procedures included:

Understanding the policies and procedures the Group applies to assessing
impairment of goodwill and investments accounted for using the equity method
to estimate the recoverable amount, including evaluation of the design and
implementation of relevant controls.

Reviewing the models used by the Group s Management, in collaboration with
our valuation specialists, focusing particularly on the model's mathematical
coherence, the reasonableness of projected cash flows, discount rates, long-
term growth rates, as well as the consistency of these models with the business
plans approved by the Group's government bodies. In performing our review,
we interviewed the people in charge of preparing the models and utilized
recognized external sources and other available information to contrast data.

Reviewing the sensitivity analyses performed by Group management on the
estimates made to determine the recoverable amount, in the event of changes
in the relevant assumptions made.

Reviewing projected financial information, analyzing the consistency and
reasonableness of the various assumptions.

Checking that the disclosures made in the notes to the consolidated financial
statement comply with the applicable financial reporting framework.

Sales of business lines and refinancing

Description As explained in notes 1.b), 3, 10 and 17 to the accompanying consolidated financial
statements, in 2020 the Prisa Group, through its subsidiary Vertix SGPS, S.A., sold
the shares it held in Grupo Media Capital, SGPS, S.A. The related assets and liabilities
were recognized at December 31, 2019 under "Non-current assets held for sale" and
"Liabilities related to non-current assets held for sale" amounting to 277 million and
161 million euros, respectively. Part of the proceeds received from the sale were
used to partially repay the syndicated loan.

In addition, as explained in Note 1.b),3 and 17 to the accompanying consolidated
financial statements, on December 31, 2020, Grupo Prisa, through its subsidiary
Grupo Santillana Educacién Global, S.L.U. ("Santillana"), executed the agreement
reached in October 2020 for the sale of Santillana's pre K-12 and K-12 business in
Spain, valued at 465 million euros. Santillana's private and public activities in Latin
America, which will continue to be managed by the Prisa Group, were excluded from
this transaction. As a result, the refinancing agreement reached with certain financial
creditors under the terms described in note 1.b) and 12.b), the effects of which were
subject to the aforementioned sale transaction, was likewise executed.

Given that the sale and refinancing agreements described above constitute very
significant transactions and have a material effect on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements, we determined the analysis of these transactions to be a key
audit matter.

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
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Our
response

In this regard, our audit procedures included the following:

Reviewing the documents pertaining to the agreements for the sale of the
business lines and the refinancing carried out to gain an understanding of the
transactions, checking that Group management had identified the obligations
and commitments acquired and ensuring that they were measured and
recognized correctly.

Checking the accuracy of Group management'’s analysis to determine whether
the refinancing transaction qualified as a modification of the existing financing
or a new debt, in accordance with prevailing accounting regulations. Checking
and comparing the qualitative and quantitative components of the new debt to
the previous debt, as well as the conditions and guarantees granted, and
analyzing the reasonableness of the related impact on the consolidated income
statement.

Involving our financial instruments experts in the audit to assist us in verifying
that this transaction received the correct accounting treatment.

Checking that the disclosures made in the notes to the consolidated financial
statement comply with the applicable financial reporting framework.

Recognition of operating revenue

Description

Our
response

As explained in notes 4.k) and 14, the Prisa Group's operating revenue of 701 million
euros is mainly derived from sales related to books, training, and advertising. With
regard to sales related to books and training, the Group is engaged in various facets
of publishing and selling books, especially for the different levels and fields of
education. These sales represent 52% of total operating revenue. Sales pertaining to
books and training recorded during the year relate to a significant number of
transactions carried out with different types of customers and terms of sale. The
majority of sales take place during the school year. Advertising sales represent 36%
of total operating revenue. These sales are generally highly fragmented and subject
to different contractual terms and conditions which, among other variables,
determine, where applicable, what discounts may be applied.

We determined this to be a key audit matter due to the diversity of the Company's
transactions and the materiality of the amounts involved.

In this regard, our audit procedures included the following:

Gaining an understanding of the processes established by management for
recognizing revenue, including evaluating the design and implementation of
relevant controls.

Involving our internal information systems specialists in the computer systems
and applications Group companies use to record these transactions.

Conducting analytical tests including reviews of journal entries, analyzing
correlations between revenue, receivables and cash accounts.

Selecting a sample of transactions for which we obtained supporting
documentation to ensure that the relevant amounts were accurate and
recognized in the correct period.

Performing substantive procedures on the operations cut-off, returns, as well as
the Company’s sales discounts policy.

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
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Checking that the disclosures made in the notes to the consolidated financial
statement comply with the applicable financial reporting framework.

Other questions

On April 30, 2020, other auditors issued their audit report on the consolidated annual accounts for
the 2019 financial year, in which they expressed a favorable opinion.

Other information: consolidated management report

Other information refers exclusively to the 2020 consolidated management report, the preparation
of which is the responsibility of the parent company's directors and is not an integral part of the
consolidated financial statements.

Our audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the consolidated
management report. Our responsibility for the consolidated management report, in conformity with
prevailing audit regulations in Spain, entails:

a. Checking only that the consolidated non-financial statement and certain information included
in the Corporate Governance Report, to which the Audit Law refers, was provided as
stipulated by applicable regulations and, if not, disclose this fact.

b. Assessing and reporting on the consistency of the remaining information included in the
consolidated management report with the consolidated financial statements, based on the
knowledge of the Group obtained during the audit, in addition to evaluating and reporting on
whether the content and presentation of this part of the consolidated management report are
in conformity with applicable regulations. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there are material misstatements, we are required to disclose this fact.

Based on the work performed, as described above, we have verified that the information referred to
in paragraph a) above is provided as stipulated by applicable regulations and that the remaining
information contained in the consolidated management report is consistent with that provided in the
2020 consolidated financial statements and its content and presentation are in conformity with
applicable regulations.

Responsibilities of the parent company s directors and the audit, risk and compliance
committee for the consolidated financial statements

The directors of the parent company are responsible for the preparation of the accompanying
consolidated financial statements so that they give a true and fair view of the equity, financial
position and results of the Group, in accordance with IFRS-EU, and other provisions in the regulatory
framework applicable to the Group in Spain, and for such internal control as they determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the parent company are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The audit, risk and compliance committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with prevailing audit regulations in Spain will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with prevailing audit regulations in Spain, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the audit, risk and compliance committee of the parent company regarding,

among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
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We also provide the audit, risk and compliance committee of the parent company with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements, including those related to independence,
and to communicate with them all matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the audit, risk and compliance committee, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters.

We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

European single electronic format

We have examined the digital files of the European single electronic format (ESEF) of PROMOTORA
DE INFORMACIONES, S.A. and subsidiaries for the 2020 financial year, which include the XHTML file
containing the consolidated financial statements for the year, and the XBRL files as labeled by the
entity, which will form part of the annual financial report.

The directors of PROMOTORA DE INFORMACIONES, S.A. are responsible for submitting the annual
financial report for the 2020 financial year, in accordance with the formatting and mark-up
requirements set out in Delegated Regulation EU 2019/815 of 17 December 2018 of the European
Commission (hereinafter referred to as the ESEF Regulation).

Our responsibility consists of examining the digital files prepared by the directors of the parent
company, in accordance with prevailing audit regulations in Spain. These standards require that we
plan and perform our audit procedures to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the contents of
the consolidated financial statements included in the aforementioned digital files correspond in their
entirety to those of the consolidated financial statements that we have audited, and whether the
consolidated financial statements and the aforementioned files have been formatted and marked up,
in all material respects, in accordance with the ESEF Regulation.

In our opinion, the digital files examined correspond in their entirety to the audited consolidated
financial statements, which are presented and have been marked up, in all material respects, in
accordance with the ESEF Regulation.

Additional report to the audit, risk and compliance committee

The opinion expressed in this audit report is consistent with the additional report we issued to the
audit, risk and compliance committee on March 23, 2021.

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
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Term of engagement

The Ordinary General Shareholder’s meeting held on June 29, 2020 appointed us as auditors of the

Group for the period of three years, starting from the year ended December 31, 2020.

ERNST & YOUNG, S.L.
(Registered in the Official Register of
Auditors under No. S0530)

(Signature on the original in Spanish)

Antonio Vdzquez Pérez
(Registered in the Official Register of
Auditors under No. 8960)

March 23, 2021

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
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PROMOTORA DE INFORMACIONES, S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES

&

PRISA

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AT DECEMBER 31, 2020 -
(Thousands of euros)
ASSETS Notes Year 2020 Year 2019 EQUITY AND LIABILITIES Notes Year 2020 Year 2019
A) NON-CURRENT ASSETS 443,259 652,461 | |A) EQUITY 11 (402,980) (411,604)
1. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 5 155,464 190,728 I. SHARE CAPITAL 70,865 666,131
II. GOODWILL 6 112,501 151,073 II. OTHER RESERVES AND ACCUMULATED PROFIT FROM PRIOR YEARS (516,048) (913,209)
III. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 7 97,543 125,008 | [III. RESULT FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE PARENT 89,737 (182,298)
IV. NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS 12a 10,493 20,665 | |IV. TREASURY SHARES (1,530) (2,591)
V. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY METHOD 8 24,679 48,711 | |V. TRANSLATION DIFFERENCES (92,275) (49,393)
VI. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS 19 42,563 116,250 | |VL. NON- CONTROLLING INTERESTS 46,271 69,756
VII. OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS 16 26
B) NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 948,543 1,331,843
1. NON-CURRENT BANK BORROWINGS 12b 810,568 1,164,869
B) CURRENT ASSETS 528,460 919,703 | |II. NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 12b 99,348 117,207
I. INVENTORIES 9a 45,708 84,423 | |III. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 19 16,840 24,993
II. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES IV. LONG-TERM PROVISIONS 13 19,195 22,139
1. Trade receivables for sales and services 9b 252,120 373,339
2. Receivable from associates 3,797 4,149 | |V. OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 2,592 2,635
3. Receivable from public authorities 19 24,883 34,192
4. Other receivables 23,698 33,038
5. Allowances 9b (55,786) (61,364)| |C) CURRENT LIABILITIES 426,156 651,925
248,712 383,354
1. TRADE PAYABLES 25 191,454 270,523
III. CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS 12a 7,718 4,740
II. PAYABLE TO ASSOCIATES 1,034 1,531
IV. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 9c 221,879 166,580
III. OTHER NON-TRADE PAYABLES 9d 39,656 52,591
V. ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE 10 4,443 280,606
IV. CURRENT BANK BORROWINGS 12b 102,746 50,188
V. CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 12b 18,558 23,745
VL. PAYABLE TO PUBLIC AUTHORITIES 19 29,321 41,499
VII. CURRENT PROVISIONS 14 9,986 11,799
VIII. OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES 9e 29,967 35,767
IX. LIABILITIES ASSOCIATED WITH ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE 10 3,434 164,282
TOTAL ASSETS 971,719 1,572,164 TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 971,719 1,572,164

The accompanying Notes 1 to 28 and Appendix I and II are an integral part of the consolidated balance sheet at December 31, 2020.
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT FOR 2020 gpn ISA

(Thousands of euros)

Notes Year 2020 Year 2019 (*)
Revenue 690,942 937,178
Other income 9,699 27,707
OPERATING INCOME 14-18 700,641 964,885
Cost of materials used (105,931) (145,430)
Staff costs 15 (268,007) (309,563)
Depreciation and amortisation charge 5-7 (70,637) (76,717)
Outside services 15 (250,882) (357,973)
Change in allowances, write-downs and provisions 15 (11,730) (13,700)
Impairment of goodwill 6 (16,602) (866)
Impairment of assets (5,961) (7,205)
OPERATING EXPENSES (729,750) (911,454)
RESULT FROM OPERATIONS (29,109) 53,431
Finance income 2,367 3,587
Finance costs (83,022) (75,809)
Changes in value of financial instruments (46,072) (5,439)
Exchange differences (net) (2,098) (3,980)
FINANCIAL RESULT 16 (128,825) (81,641)
Result of companies accounted for using the equity method 8 (8,458) 2,676
RESULT BEFORE TAX FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS 18 (166,392) (25,534)
Expense tax 19 (81,071) (52,752)
RESULT FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS (247,463) (78,286)
Result after tax from discontinued operations 17 322,913 (94,532)
CONSOLIDATED RESULT FOR THE YEAR 75,450 (172,818)
Result attributable to non-controlling interests 11i 14,287 (9,480)
RESULT ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE PARENT 89,737 (182,298)
|BASIC RESULT PER SHARE (in euros) 21 0.13| (0.27)|
|DILUTED RESULT PER SHARE (in euros) 21 0.13| (0.27)|
- Basic result per share from continuing activities (in euros) 21 (0.33) (0.13)
- Basic result per share from discontinuing activities (in euros) 21 0.46 (0.14)

(*) The consolidated income statement for 2019 has been restated for comparative purposes and in accordance with IFRS 5 to present the

result of Santillana Spain as a discontinued operation and has not been audited.

The accompanying Notes 1 to 28 and Appendix I and II are an integral part of the consolidated income statement for 2020.



PROMOTORA DE INFORMACIONES, S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATE STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR 2020

(Thousands of euros)

=

< PRISA
Year 2020 Year 2019

CONSOLIDATED PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 75,450 (172,818)
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss (62,551) (9,932)
Translation differences (56,261) (12,888)
Profit/ (Loss) for valuation (56,823) (12,718)
Amounts transferred to the profit and loss account 562 (170)
Other non-current financial assets at fair value - 397
Profit/ (Loss) for valuation - (18)
Amounts transferred to the profit and loss account - 415

Tax effect - (98)
Entities accounted for using the equity method (6,290) 2,657
TOTAL RECOGNIZED INCOME AND EXPENSE 12,899 (182,750)
Attributable to the Parent 28,701 (191,604)
Attributable to non-controlling interests (15,802) 8,854

The accompanying Notes 1 to 28 and Appendix I and II are an integral part of the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for 2020.



PROMOTORA DE INFORMACIONES, S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR 2020
(Thousands of euros)

&

- DRISA

Prior years” Accumulated Equity

Share Share accumulated Treasury Exchange profit attributable to Non-controlling

capital premium Reserves profit shares differences for the Year the Parent interests Equity
BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31, 2018 524,902 201,512 (636,059) (87,692) (2,856) (40,918) (269,347) (310,458) 74,649 (235,809)
Capital increase 141,229 52,668 193,897 193,897
Treasury share transactions (see note 11f)
- Purchase and sales of treasury shares (250) (250) (250);
- Reserves for treasury shares (515) 515
Distribution of 2018 results
- Reserves 110,201 (379,548) 269,347
Income and expense recognised in equity
- Translation differences (Notes 11 g - 11 h) (1,129) (8,475) (9,604) (626) (10,230)!
- Result for 2019 (182,298) (182,298) 9,480 (172,818)
- Measurement of financial instruments (13) (13) (13)
- Rest of income and expense recognised in equity 311 311 311
Other 4,893 (177,838) (172,945) 607 (172,338)
Changes in non controlling interest (Note 11i)
- Dividends paid during the year (11,480) (11,480)
- Due to changes in scope of consolidation 48 48
- Due to changes in percentage of consolidation (2,922) (2,922),
BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31, 2019 666,131 254,180 (521,182) (646,207) (2,591) (49,393) (182,298) (481,360) 69,756 (411,604)
Capital reduction (Note 11a and 11b) (595,266) 595,266
Treasury share transactions (Note 11f)
- Delivery of treasury shares 58 58 58
- Purchase and sales of treasury shares 20 20 20
- Reserves for treasury shares (983) 983
Distribution of 2019 results
- Reserves (209,606) 27,308 182,298
Income and expense recognised in equity
- Translation differences ( Note 11g-11h) (18,154) (42,882) (61,036) (1,515) (62,551),
- Result for 2020 89,737 89,737 (14,287) 75,450
Other (254,180) 254,651 2,859 3,330 (1,304) 2,026
Changes in non controlling interest (Note 11i)
- Dividends paid during the year (3,643) (3,643)
- Due to changes in scope of consolidation (2,736) (2,736),
BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31, 2020 70,865 0 118,146 (634,194) (1,530) (92,275) 89,737 (449,251) 46,271 (402,980)

The accompanying Notes 1 to 28 and Appendix I and II are an integral part of the consolidated statement of changes in equity for 2020.




PROMOTORA DE INFORMACIONES, S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES ==
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW FOR 2020 < PRISA
(Thousands of euros)

Notes Year 2020 Year 2019 (*)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS 18 (166,392) (25,534)
Depreciation and amortisation charge and provisions 104,704 98,446
Changes in working capital (1,691) (49,906)
Inventories 9a 28,106 (13,668)
Accounts receivable 9b 100,185 (62,329)
Accounts payable (129,982) 26,091
Income tax recovered (paid) 19 (17,849) (25,013)
Other profit adjustments 135,386 72,028
Financial results 16 128,825 81,641
Gains and losses on disposal of assets (1,229) (9,969)
Other adjustments 7,790 356
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 18 54,158 70,021
Recurrent investments (45,411) (61,571)
Investments in intangible assets 7 (31,512) (44,657)
Investments in property, plant and equipment 5 (13,899) (16,914)
Investments in non-current financial assets (921) (350,248)
Proceeds from disposals 461,269 41,895
Other cash flow from investing activities 10,922 943
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 18 425,859 (368,981)
Proceeds and payments relating to equity instruments 20 192,053
Proceeds relating to financial liability instruments 12b 93,354 85,189
Payments relating to financial liability instruments 12b (427,997) (16,041)
Dividends and returns on other equity instruments paid (2,453) (38,812)
Interest paid (61,170) (54,592)
Other cash flow from financing activities 12b (39,4006) (36,594)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 18 (437,652) 131,203
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes (12,453) 43
CHANGE IN CASH FLOWS FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS 18 29,912 (167,714)
Cash flows from operating activities from discontinued operations 57,444 67,521
Cash flows from investing activities from discontinued operations (34,354) (18,678)
Cash flows from financing activities from discontinued operations 2,297 (9,642)
CHANGE IN CASH FLOWS FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS 18 25,387 39,201
[ CHANGE IN CASH FLOWS IN THE YEAR [ [ 55299 | | (128,513)]
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 9c 166,580 295,093
- Cash 107,610 250,360
- Cash equivalents 58,970 44,733
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 9c 221,879 166,580
- Cash 168,712 107,610
- Cash equivalents 53,167 58,970

(*) The consolidated statement of cash flow for 2019 has been restated for comparative purposes and in accordance with IFRS 5 to present the cash flow
of Santillana Spain as a discontinued operation and has not been audited.

The accompanying Notes 1 to 28 and Appendix I and II are an integral part of the consolidated statement of cash flow for 2020.
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< PRISA Consolidated financial statements for 2020

Translation of consolidated financial statements originally issued in Spanish and prepared in accordance with
IFRSs as adopted by the European Union (see notes 2 and 28). In the event of a discrepancy, the Spanish-
language version prevails.

PROMOTORA DE INFORMACIONES, S.A. (PRISA)
AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR 2020

(1) GROUP ACTIVITIES AND PERFORMANCE

a) Group activities

Promotora de Informaciones, S.A. (“Prisa” or “the Company”) was incorporated on January
18, 1972 in Madrid (Spain), and has its registered office in Madrid, at Gran Via, 32. Its business
activities include, inter alia, the exploitation of media in any format, including the publication
of newspapers and educational material, the holding of investments in companies and
businesses and the provision of all manner of services.

In addition to the business activities carried on directly by the Company, Prisa heads a group
of subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates which engage in a variety of business activities
and which compose the Group (“the Prisa Group” or “the Group”). Therefore, in addition to
its own separate financial statements, Prisa is obliged to present consolidated financial
statements for the Group including its interests in joint ventures and investments in
associates.

The consolidated financial statements for 2019 were approved by the shareholders at the
Annual General Meeting held on June 29, 2020 and are deposited in the Mercantile Register of
Madrid.

The Group’s consolidated financial statements for 2020 were authorized for issue by the
Company’s directors on March 23, 2021, for submission to the approval of the General
Meeting of Shareholders, it being estimated that they will be approved without modification.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands of euros as this is the
currency of the main economic area in which the Group operates. Foreign operations are
accounted for in accordance with the policies described in note 2d.

Shares of Prisa are admitted to trading on continuous market of the Spanish Stock Exchanges
(Madrid, Barcelona, Bilbao and Valencia).
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b) Evolution of the Group's equity and financial structure

During last year, the Administrators of Prisa took a number of measures to strengthen the
Group's financial and asset structure, such as asset sale operations, capital increases and
refinancing of its debt.

In November 2017 and in January 2018 a capital increase was approved by the Company by a
total amount of EUR 563,220 thousand, which was subscribed in February 2018.

On June 29, 2018, the agreed refinancing with the financial creditors of the Override Agreement
(agreement to refinance the Group's debt signed in December 2013) came into effect, and
included, among other aspects, the extension of the debt maturity date to November and
December 2022. On this same date, the Company cancelled a debt amounting EUR 480,000
thousand with the proceeds from the cash capital increase described above.

On March 20, 2019, the Company agreed to carry out a capital increase amounting to EUR
199,824 thousand, which was fully subscribed in April 2019. This capital increase was used to
partially fund the acquisition of 25% of the share capital of Grupo Santillana Educaciéon
Global, S.L.

On May 14, 2020, Vertix, SGPS, S.A. (subsidiary fully owned by Prisa) sold to Pluris
Investments, S.A. (Pluris) the shares amounting to 30.22% of share capital of Grupo Media
Capital, SGPS, S.A. (Media Capital) for a price of EUR 10,500 thousand (see notes 3 and 17).

On June 29, 2020, the Prisa’s General Shareholder Meeting agreed to reduce in share capital of
the Parent Company in order to re-establish its equity balance (see note 11). Therefore, on
December 31, 2020, the Parent Company's equity is greater than two thirds of the capital
stock, which is why it was in a situation of equity balance at that date.

On September 4, 2020, Prisa signed with a plurality of investors independent agreements for
the sale of shares of Media Capital, which together represent the entire shareholding (64.47%)
held by Prisa trough Vertix in the Portuguese company. On November 3, 2020, the sale of
shares for a price of 36.9 million euros was completed (see notes 3 and 17).

On October 19, 2020, Prisa, through its subsidiary Grupo Santillana Educacién Global, S.L.U.
(“Santillana”), signed an agreement with the Sanoma Corporation, a European learning and
Finnish media company, for the sale of the Spanish educational business of Santillana
addressed at pre K12 and K-12 segments (“Santillana Spain”). Santillana's activity in public
and private markets in Latin America has been excluded from the transaction and will
continue to be developed by Prisa through Santillana. On December 31, 2020, the transaction
was closed at an enterprise value of EUR 465 million and a it meant a total cash obtained from
the buyer of EUR 418 million (see notes 3 and 17).

In October 2020, Prisa signed a lock-up agreement (the “Lock-up Agreement”) which
contained a term sheet that sets out, among other aspects, the essential terms on which the
Group’s syndicated financial debt restructured (the “Refinancing”). The Refinancing was
conditioned on successfully completing the selling of certain Santillana K-12 and pre K-12
business assets in Spain and it was binding on all creditors owed the financial debt to be
restructured. On December 31, 2020 the Refinancing came into effect, once the agreements



&

< PRISA Consolidated financial statements for 2020

reached with all of its creditors were concluded, among which were included, the culmination
of the sale of Santillana Spain, as described above (see note 12b).

The agreed Refinancing makes the Group's financial debt more flexible and provides it with a
financial structure that enables it to meet its financial commitments, ensuring the Group's
stability in the short and medium term.

The sale of the Spanish educational business and the Refinancing enable Prisa to focus, as a
priority, on the management and enhancement of its two chief businesses, Education and
Media, and to build these on firm and sustainable bases. This will accelerate Prisa's digital
transformation, focused both on the development of Ed-Tech learning systems in Latin
America and on subscription models in its Media businesses.

The emergence of COVID-19 (coronavirus) in China in January 2020 and its recent global
expansion to a large number of countries has led to the viral outbreak, classified as a
pandemic by the World Health Organization on March 11, 2020.

Considering the complexity of the markets due to their globalisation the consequences for the
Group's businesses are uncertain, and will depend to a large extent on the development,
extent of the pandemic in the coming months, the effectiveness of the current medical
treatments and on the reaction and of all the economic actors affected, and their ability to rise
to the challenge.

Therefore, at the date of authorized for issue of these consolidated financial statements, we
have carried out an assessment and quantification of the impacts that COVID-19 had on the
Group as of December 31, 2020. There is still a high level of uncertainty about its consequences
in the short and medium term.

Therefore, the Directors and Management of the Group have assessed the situation based on
the best information available. For the reasons referred to above, such information may be
incomplete. As a result of this assessment, we highlight the following:

e Liquidity risk: The situation in the markets has caused an increase in liquidity
pressures in the economy and a contraction in the credit market. To face this, the
Group has in place a Super Senior debt (“Super Senior Term & Revolving Facilities
Agreement”) to meet operational needs for a maximum amount of EUR 188.5 million, of
which EUR 80 million were drawn as of December 31, 2020. Likewise, the rest of
subsidiaries of the Group have credit facilities with a limit amount of EUR 39.5 million
as of December 31, 2020, of which, EUR 4.4 million were drawn on that date (see note
12b). Therefore, as of December 31, 2020, the Group had undrawn credit facilities
amounting to EUR 143.6 million, together with cash available of EUR 212 million. The
Group has also implemented specific plans for the improvement and efficient
management of liquidity to address these tensions.

e Operational risk: the changing and unpredictable nature of events could lead to the
emergence of a risk of interruption in the provision of services or sales. Therefore, the
Group has established contingency plans aimed at monitoring and managing its
operations at all times. To date, no notable incidents have been revealed.
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e Risk of change in certain financial magnitudes: the factors referred to above have
adversely affect the Group's advertising revenues and to sales of newspapers and
magazines and sale of books and training, which can continue to lead a decrease in the
relevant captions for the Group in the next consolidated financial statements, such as
“Revenue”, “Result from operations” or “Result before tax”. In this regard, the Group has
made an estimate of the impact of COVID-19 in 2020, which would entail a reduction
in the Group's advertising revenue, from the income from the sale of newspapers and
magazines and the income from book sales and training (excluding Santillana Spain) of
approximately 32%, 20% and 18% respectively, in relation to the previous year. The
Group's “Result from operations” in 2020 is expected to be reduced by the effect of
COVID-19 by approximately 118% compared to 2019 (excluding for a comparable
basis, the expense of Mediapro ruling and the result from operations of Santillana
Spain in 2019).

Therefore, the Group has implemented a contingency plan with the aim of minimizing
the aforementioned effects, and continues to work on it during 2021. As of December
31, 2020, this contingency plan has resulted in cost savings, and therefore an
improvement in the Group's profit from operations of EUR 49 million, and fixed cost
savings for 2021 are estimated to be around EUR 30 million in relation to 2019
excluding severances and exchenge rate effect. However, it is not possible at this stage
to reliably quantify the impact of COVID-19 in next financial statements, given the
constraints and limitations already indicated.

Likewise, COVID-19 could also have an adverse impact on key indicators for the
Group, such as financial leverage ratios and compliance with financial ratios included
in the financial agreements of the Group. In this sense, with the agreed Refinancing,
the Group's financial debt is made more flexible and endowed with a financial
structure that makes it possible to meet its financial commitments (including financial
ratios (covenants)), ensuring the Group's stability in the short and medium term.

¢ Balance sheet assets and liabilities measurement risk: a change in the future estimates
of the Group's revenue, production costs, finance costs, credit quality of trade
receivables, etc. could have an adverse impact on the carrying amount of certain assets
(goodwill, intangible assets, deferred tax assets, trade and other receivables, etc.) and
on the need to recognize provisions or other liabilities. The appropriate analyses and
calculations have been carried out which have allowed, where appropriate, those assets
and liabilities to be re-measured with the information available to date. This has meant
that at December 31, 2020 there have been significant changes in the estimates at the
end of 2019 regarding recoverability of goodwill, investments accounted for using the
equity method and tax credits, as described in notes 6, 8 and 19 respectively.

e Continuity risk (going concern): in the light of all the above factors, the Directors of the
Group consider that the application of the going concern principle remains valid.

Finally, we highlight that the Group's Directors and Management are constantly monitoring

the situation so as to successfully address any impacts, both financial and non-financial, that
may arise.

10
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As a consequence of the facts set out above, the Directors have applied the going concern
principle.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

a) Application of International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs)

The Group’s consolidated financial statements were prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) as adopted by the European Union, in
conformity with Regulation (EC) no. 1606/2002 of the European Parliament and of the
Council, taking into account all mandatory accounting policies and rules and measurement
bases with a material effect, as well as with the Commercial Code, the obligatory legislation
approved by the Institute of Accounting and Auditors of Accounts, and other applicable
Spanish legislation.

In accordance with said regulation, in the scope of application of IFRS, and in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements of the Group, the following aspects should be
highlighted:

e The IFRSs are applied in the preparation of the consolidated financial information of
the Group. The financial statements of individual companies that are part of the Group
are prepared and presented in accordance with accounting standards in each country.

e In accordance with IFRSs, these consolidated financial statements include the
following consolidated financial statements of the Group:

- Balance sheet.

- Income statement.

- Statement of comprehensive income.
- Statement of changes in equity.

- Statement of cash flow.

e As required by IAS 8, uniform accounting policies and measurement bases were
applied by the Group for all transactions, events and items in 2020 and 2019.

In 2020, the following amendment to accounting standard came into force which, therefore,
was considered when preparing these consolidated financial statements:

- Amendment to IAS 1 and IAS 8. Definition of materiality.

- Amendments to the conceptual framework of the IFRS. Review of the conceptual
framework of the IFRS.

- Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7. Interest Rate Benchmark Reform.

- Amendment to IFRS 3. Business combinations.

The application of these amendments and interpretations did not have a significant impact on
the Group’s consolidated financial statements for this year.

11
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The Group has elected not to early adopt other IFRSs issued but not yet effective, except for
the early application of the amendment to IFRS 16 Leases - "Rent improvements".

Amendment to IFRS 16 Leases - "Rent improvements”

This modification allows, as a practical solution, the lessee to choose not to account for rental
concessions arising from COVID-19 as a modification of the lease.

This practical solution can only be applied to rental concessions that have been a direct
consequence of COVID-19. This requires the following conditions to be met: (i) the change in
lease payments results in a revision of the lease consideration that is substantially the same as,
or less than, the consideration immediately prior to the change; (ii) any reduction in lease
payments only affects payments that were originally due on or before 30 June 2021; and (iii)
there are no substantive changes to other terms and conditions of the lease.

This amendment has meant a lower lease expense in the year 2020 of EUR 1.2 million.
At December 31, 2020, the Prisa Group had not applied the following standards or

interpretations issued, since the effective application thereof was required subsequent to that
date or they have not been adopted by the European Union.

Standards, amendments, and interpretations Mandatory application for
financial years beginning on
or after

Approved for use in the EU
Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, Interest rate benchmark reform January 1, 2021
IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16

Amendments to IFRS 4, deferral |Insurance contracts January 1, 2021
of IFRS 9

Not yet approved for use in the EU

Amendment to IFRS 16 COVID-19-Related Rent April 1, 2021
Concessions beyond 30 June 2021

Amendment to IFRS 3 Business combinations January 1, 2022

Amendment to IAS 16 Property, plant and equipment  |January 1, 2022

Amendment to IAS 37 Provisions, contingent liabilities |January 1, 2022
and contingent assets

IFRS annual improvements 2018-2020 Cycle January 1, 2022

IFRS 17 Insurance contracts, including January 1, 2023
amendments to IFRS 17

Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial January 1, 2023
Statements

Amendments to IAS 8 Accounting policies, changes in  |January 1, 2023

Accounting estimates and errors:
definition of accounting estimates

There is no accounting principle or measurement bases having a significant effect on the
consolidated financial statements that the Group has failed to apply.

12
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b) Fair presentation and accounting principles

The consolidated financial statements were obtained from the separate financial statements of
Prisa and its subsidiaries and, accordingly, they present fairly the Group’s equity and
financial position at December 31, 2020, and the results of its operations, the changes in equity
and the cash flows in the year then ended. The Group prepared its financial statements on a
going concern basis, as described in note 1b. Also, with the exception of the consolidated
statement of cash flows, these consolidated financial statements were prepared in accordance
with the accrual basis of accounting.

Given that the accounting policies and measurement bases applied in preparing the Group’s
consolidated financial statements for 2020 may differ from those applied by some of the
Group companies, the necessary adjustments and reclassifications were made on
consolidation to unify these policies and bases and to make them compliant with IFRSs as
adopted by the European Union.

¢) Responsibility for the information and use of estimates

The information in these consolidated financial statements is the responsibility of the
Company’s directors.

In the consolidated financial statements for 2020 estimates were occasionally made by
executives of the Group and of the entities in order to quantify certain of the assets, liabilities
and obligations reported herein. These estimates relate basically to the following;:

- The measurement of assets and goodwill to determine the possible existence of
impairment losses (see notes 4d and 4f).

- The useful life of property, plant, and equipment and intangible assets (see notes 4b and
4e).

- The hypotheses used to calculate the fair value of financial instruments (see note 4g).

- The assessment of the likelihood and amount of undetermined or contingent liabilities
(see note 4j).

- Estimated sales returns received after the end of the reporting period (see note 4k).

- Provisions for unissued and outstanding invoices.

- The estimates made for the determination of future commitments (see note 25).

- The recoverability of deferred tax assets (see note 19).

- Determination of the lease term in contracts with renewal option (see note 4c).

Although these estimates were made on the basis of the best information available at the date
of preparation of these consolidated financial statements on the events analysed, it is possible
that events that may take place in the future force them to modify them, upwards or
downwards. In this case, the effects in the corresponding consolidated income statements for
future periods, as well as in assets and liabilities, would be recognized.

In 2020, there were no significant changes in the accounting estimates made at the end of 2019,
except those referring to the recoverability of goodwill, of the investments accounted for using
the equity method, of the deferred tax assets and the value of the investment in Media Capital
as described in notes 6, 8, 19 and 10, respectively.

13
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d) Basis of consolidation
The consolidation methods applied were as follows:
Full consolidation-

Subsidiaries are accounted for using the equity method, and all their assets, liabilities, income,
expenses and cash flows are included in the consolidated financial statements after the
necessary adjustments and eliminations have been carried out. Subsidiaries are companies
over which the parent company exercises control, i.e. it has the power to direct their financial
and operating policies, it is exposed or is entitled to variable earnings or has the ability to
influence their earnings. Subsidiaries accounted for using the equity method are listed in
Appendix L.

The results of subsidiaries which are acquired or sold during the year are included in the
consolidated income statement from the effective date of acquisition of control or until the
effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

On acquisition of control, the assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of a subsidiary are
measured at their fair values. Any excess of the cost of the subsidiary’s acquisition over the
parent company’s share of the net fair value of its assets and liabilities is recognized as
goodwill. Any deficiency is credited to the consolidated income statement.

The share of third parties of the equity of Group companies is presented under “Equity - Non-
controlling interests” in the consolidated balance sheet and their share of the profit for the year
is presented under “Result attributable to non-controlling interests” in the consolidated income
statement.

The interest of non-controlling shareholders is stated at those shareholders’” proportion of the
fair values of the assets and liabilities recognized.

All balances and transactions between the fully consolidated companies were eliminated on
consolidation.

Equity method-

Associates are accounted for using the equity method. Associates are companies in which
Prisa holds direct or indirect ownership interests of between 20% and 50%, or even if the
percentage of ownership does not reach those levels, it has significant influence over their
management.

This method was also applied to joint ventures, considered as arrangements whereby the
parties that exercise joint control over the company are entitled to its net assets on the basis of
the arrangement. Joint control is the sharing of control that is contractually decided and set
out in an agreement, which exists only when decisions concerning major operations require
the unanimous consent of the parties that share control.

The companies accounted for using the equity method are listed in Appendix I and II,
together with their main financial aggregates.

14
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Under the equity method, investments are recognized in the consolidated balance sheet at the
Group’s share of net assets of the investee, adjusted, if appropriate, for the effect of
transactions performed with the Group, plus any unrealized gains relating to the goodwill
paid on the acquisition of the company.

Dividends received from these companies are recognized as a reduction in the value of the
Group’s investment. The Group’s share of the profit or loss of these companies is included,
net of the related tax effect, in the consolidated income statement under “Result of companies
accounted for using the equity method.”

Additionally, investments accounted for using the equity method are modified by the effect of
the exchange rate.

Other matters -

The data relating to Sociedad Espaiiola de Radiodifusion, S.L., Grupo Santillana Educacién
Global, S.L., Prisa Brand Solutions, S.L. (sole trader), Grupo Latino de Radiodifusiéon Chile,
Ltda., Sistema Radiépolis, S.A. de C.V. and Grupo Media Capital SGPS, S.A. contained in
these notes were obtained from their respective consolidated financial statements.

The items in the balance sheets of the companies whose functional currency is not the euro
included in the scope of consolidation were translated to euros using “the closing rate
method”, i.e. all assets, rights and obligations were translated at the exchange rates prevailing
at the end of the reporting period. Income statement items were translated at the average
exchange rates for the year. The difference between the value of the equity translated at
historical exchange rates and the net equity position resulting from the translation of the other
items as indicated above is recognized under "Equity- Translation differences" in the
accompanying consolidated balance sheet.

Venezuela

From 2009 onwards Venezuela is considered to have a hyperinflationary economy. The
functional currency of the Venezuelan subsidiary is the bolivar. The Group regularly
evaluates the local economic situation and the particular circumstances of its operations in
Venezuela in order to determine the exchange rate that better reflects the economic aspects of
its activities in the country, taking into account all information available on relevant factors
and circumstances at each closing date.

During 2017 and 2018 the economic and political crisis in Venezuela become more acute and
this situation sparked a jump in the rate of inflation. However, the official exchange rates did
not move accordingly, which meant that they were not representative of the value of the
Venezuelan currency and, therefore, did not reflect the real loss of purchasing power of such
currency. In May 2017, a new exchange agreement was published. This agreement established
a currency exchange auction system with limited fluctuation bands, although no new
currency exchange auctions were called since August 2017. In January 2018, another exchange
agreement was published. This agreement established a new auction mechanism, where
currency offers will mainly come from the private sector, eliminating the protected exchange
rate system ("DIPRO"). Structural deficiencies of this mechanism (inadequate depth and
transparency) suggested that a significant deviation between the evolution of official
exchange rates and inflation continued.

15
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In this context, taking into account the country's economic reality and the absence of official
rates representing the economic situation of Venezuela, in 2017 and 2018 the Group deemed
necessary to estimate an exchange rate commensurate with the evolution of inflation in
Venezuela, which appropriately reflected the economic-financial and equity situation of its
Venezuelan subsidiary when drawing up the Group's consolidated financial statements
(synthetic exchange rate). The methodology applied in this sense consisted in considering an
exchange rate as a representative starting point, due to the closer approximation between the
official auction exchange rate, the existing alternative rates and the exchange rates obtained by
applying macroeconomic methodologies; and updating it with the inflation rates published by
the Finance Commission of the Venezuelan National Assembly. In the second half of 2018,
the Venezuelan government carried out a monetary reconversion that meant removing 5 zeros
from its currency and denominating it in sovereign bolivars. The exchange rate used as at
December 31, 2018 when translating the financial statements of the Venezuelan subsidiary,
resulting from the methodology described above, amounted to 6,000 sovereigns bolivars per
euro.

Hyperinflation, loss of purchasing power, falling international reserves and the fiscal deficit,
among other things, combined with the restrictions caused by the COVID-19 pandemic,
meant that 2020 began with the country’s biggest economic and political crisis. In Venezuela,
unlike other countries, no fiscal stimuli were applied to try to recover or sustain the
productive apparatus, which had a negative impact on companies’ cash flow. In addition, the
restrictions on bank credit made it necessary to operate with equity. Banking allowed, for use
within the national territory, the purchase and sale of foreign currency through bureau de
change transactions using an average exchange rate based on supply and demand. Due to all
these effects, the bolivar continued to be devalued and it is estimated that 80% of transactions
were in dollars, which is the marker for setting any price today.

An easing of currency controls was carried out, which leads to the official rate of the dollar
being brought in line with the parallel market price. This causes official exchange rates to be
used for the translating of financial statements. The exchange rate used as at December 31,
2020 when translating the financial statements of the Venezuelan subsidiary, comes from
Venezuela Central Bank, amounted to 1,352,443 sovereigns bolivars per euro (52,332
sovereigns bolivars per euro at December 31, 2019).

In October 2019 the Venezuelan central bank published the inflation indices, which had been
absent from 2016 to September 2019, generating a positive impact on the inflation-adjusted
figures, as these were lower than those reported by the National Assembly's Finance
Committee, whose inflation for 2018 was 1,698,488%. The last quarter of 2020 was published
in February 2021, closing the 2020 financial year with a cumulative inflation of 2,959.8%
(9,585.5% from January to December 2019). The deceleration of the inflation rate is therefore
continuing.
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Argentina

Since the second quarter of 2018, Argentina's economy has been considered by international
authorities as hyperinflationary. The main reason for this is that since 1 July 2018 the
accumulated inflation of the last three years in Argentina exceeded 100%. As a general price
index, Argentina's national CPI has been applied since 1 January 2017, the IPIM (Internal
Wholesale Price Index) until 31 December 2018 and from January 2019 it was determined that
the official index to be used will be the one issued by the Federacion Argentina de Consejos
Profesionales de Ciencias Econémicas (FACPCE) which has matched the national CPI since
2019. The inflation rate from January to December 2020 amounts to 36.13% (53.30% from
January to December 2019).

The functional currency is the Argentine peso and the balance sheet and the income statement
of the Argentine subsidiaries were converted to the exchange rate on December 31, 2020,
which was 102.74 EUR/ Argentine peso (67.19 EUR/ Argentine peso at December 31, 2019).

Prior to the consideration of Argentina as a hyperinflationary economy, the financial
statements of this country's subsidiaries were developed using the historical cost method.

When the operations of a Venezuelan or Argentinian entities (entities that uses the
Venezuelan bolivar or the Argentine pesos as their functional currency) are translated into the
currency of a non-hyperinflationary economy, in this case to euros, paragraph IAS 21.42 (b)
states that "comparative amounts shall be those that were presented as current year amounts
in the relevant prior year financial statements (i.e. not adjusted for subsequent changes in the
price level or subsequent changes in exchange rates)".

Non- monetary headings of the balance sheet are adjusted to reflect changes in prices in
accordance with local laws, before they are translated to euros, as contained in the notes to
these consolidated financial statements separately under the column "Monetary adjustment".
The effect of inflation for the financial year as to monetary assets and liabilities is included
under "Finance costs" in the attached consolidated income statement. The effect of the
adjustment for inflation on the net equity of companies to which this accounting practice
applies (Venezuela and Argentina) (positive impact of EUR 2.2 million, which EUR 1.0 million
come from Argentina) and the translation differences associated with them (negative impact
of EUR 5.6 million, of which EUR 4.2 million come from Argentina) have been registered
under the line “Translation differences” on the accompanying consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. Likewise, this effect has been registered under "Equity- Accumulated
profit for prior years" on the accompanying consolidated balance sheet.

The operations and investments in Latin America may be affected by various risks typical of
investments in countries with emerging economies, such as currency devaluation, inflation,
restrictions on the movement of capital. Specifically, in Venezuela the movement of funds is
affected by complex administrative procedures, expropriation or nationalization, tax changes,
changes in policies and regulations or unstable situations.

e) Information comparison

In accordance with commercial legislation, in addition to the figures for 2020, the figures for
the previous year are presented for comparison purposes with each of the items in the
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consolidated balance sheet, income statement, statement of comprehensive income, statement
of changes in equity and cash flow statement, in addition to the figures for 2020. Comparative
information for the previous year is also included in the notes to the financial statements,
except where an accounting standard specifically states that it is not required.

Since October 2020, as a consequence of the contract signed with Sanoma Corporation for the
sale of the Spanish educational business of Santillana addressed at pre K12 and K-12, the
results of Santillana Spain were reclassified as a discontinued operation under "Result after tax
from discontinued operations”.

In accordance with IFRS 5 and for the purpose of comparison, the consolidated income
statement and the consolidated cash flow statement for the 2019 financial year and their
disclosures in the notes have been modified to present Santillana Spain as a discontinued
operation (see notes 17 y 18).

CHANGES IN THE GROUP STRUCTURE

The most significant changes in the scope of consolidation in 2020 were as follows:

Subsidiaries

In January 2020, the liquidation of Radio Mercadeo, Ltda. took place.

In February 2020, the liquidation of Grupo Latino de Publicidad Colombia, S.A.S took place.
In March 2020, the liquidation of Prisa Noticias Colombia, S.A.S took place.

In June 2020 is sold Fullscreen Solutions, S.A. de C.V.

Also, in June 2020, is liquidated GLR Colombia, Ltda.

In July 2020, Sociedad de Radiodifusién El Litoral, S.L. was merged by absorption into Blaya y
Vega S.A. Both companies belong to the consolidated Grupo Latino de Radiodifusién Chile,

Ltda.

Likewise, in July 2020, the merger by absorption of Meristation Megazine, S.L. with Grupo
Empresarial de Medios Impresos y Digitales, S.L. took place.

In August 2020, Publicitaria y Difusora El Norte, Ltd, Comunicaciones Pacifico, S.A. and
Abril, S.A. were merged into Fast Net Comunicaciones S.A. and Iberoamericana Radio Chile,
S.A. was merged into Comercializadora Iberoamericana Radio Chile, S.A. All companies
belong to the consolidated Grupo Latino de Radiodifusién Chile, Ltda.

On May 14, 2020, Vertix, SGPS, S.A. (subsidiary fully owned by Prisa) sold to Pluris
Investments, S.A. (Pluris) the shares amounting to 30.22% of share capital of Grupo Media
Capital, SGPS, S.A. (“Media Capital”) for a price of EUR 10,500 thousand. This amount, net of
costs, was destined to partial repayment of syndicated loan of the Group. This transaction
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meant an accounting loss for EUR 29 million, accounted as “Result after tax from discontinued
operations” in the accompanying consolidated income statement (see notes 1 and 17).

On September 4, 2020, Prisa signed with a plurality of investors independent agreements for
the sale of shares of Media Capital, which together represent the entire shareholding (64.47%)
held by Prisa trough Vertix in the Portuguese company. On November 3, 2020, the sale of
shares for a price of 36.9 million euros was completed. This amount, net of costs, has been
used to partially repay the Group's syndicated loan. The above have meant an accounting loss
for EUR 48.5 million, accounted as “Result after tax from discontinued operations” in the
accompanying consolidated income statement (see notes 1 and 17).

The consolidated balance sheet of Media Capital at the date of delisting was as follows
(thousands of euros):

Non-current assets- 122,731
Property, plant, and equipment 18,966
Goodwill 92,032
Intangible assets 8,384
Other non-current assets 3,349
Current assets- 117,959
Inventories 74,202
Trade receivables and other receivables 27,296
Cash and cash equivalents 16,461
Total assets 240,690
Equity 73,800
Non-current liabilities- 50,473
Non-current bank borrowings 44,699
Other non-current liabilities 5,774
Current liabilities- 116,417
Commercial creditors 34,408
Other non-trade payables 15,437
Current bank borrowings 51,957
Public administrations 11,777
Other current liabilities 2,838
Total liabilities 240,690

In November 2020, is liquidated Promotora General de Revistas, S.A.

The merger by absorption of Radio Spain de Barcelona, S.L. with Sociedad Espafiola de
Radiodifusion, S.L.U. also took place in November 2020.

On October 19, 2020, Prisa, through its subsidiary Grupo Santillana Educacién Global, S.L.U.

(“Santillana”), signed an agreement with the Sanoma Corporation, a European learning and
Finnish media company, for the sale of the Spanish educational business of Santillana

19



&

< PRISA Consolidated financial statements for 2020

addressed at pre K12 and K-12 segments. Santillana's activity in public and private markets in
Latin America has been excluded from the transaction and will continue to be developed by
Prisa through Santillana.

On December 31, 2020, the transaction was closed at an enterprise value of EUR 465 million
which represents 9.6 times the average EBITDA registered for the educational cycles over the
2017/2019 period. The companies object of the transaction have been Santillana Educacién,
S.L.U., Santillana Infantil y Juvenil, S.L., [taca, S.L., Edicions Obradoiro, S.L., Ediciones
Grazalema, S.L., Grup Promotor D"’Ensenyement i Difussi6é en Catald, S.L., Zubia Editoriala,
S.L. and Edicions Voramar, S.A., which has meant a total cash inflow obtained from the buyer
of EUR 418 million. Of the cash obtained, 371 million euros have been used to partially repay
the Prisa syndicated loan (see note 12b). The impact of the operation on Prisa's consolidated
income statement is a positive result for 377 million euros, accounted as “Result after tax from
discontinued operations” in the accompanying consolidated income statement (see note 17).

The consolidated balance sheet of Santillana Spain companies at the date of delisting was as
follows (thousands of euros):

Non-current assets- 24,349
Property, plant, and equipment 9,320
Intangible assets 11,482
Non current financial investments 750
Deferred tax assets 2,797
Current assets- 28,704
Inventories 11,309
Trade receivables and other receivables 10,674
Cash and cash equivalents 6,721
Total assets 53,053
Equity 11,489
Non-current liabilities- 14,918]
Non-current bank borrowings 9,243
Other non-current liabilities 5,675
Current liabilities- 26,646
Commercial creditors 17,652
Other non-trade payables 4,198
Current bank borrowings 2,186
Public administrations 2,547
Other current liabilities 63
Total liabilities 53,053

In December 2020, Santillana Latam, S.L.U. is created.

Also, in December 2020, is liquidated Prisa Gestiéon de Servicios, S.L.

20



@

&

< PRISA Consolidated financial statements for 2020

Likewise, in December 2020, Sociedad Espafola de Radiodifusion, S.L.U. acquired the 64.01%
of Radio Rioja, S.A., thus acquiring 100% of the company. Following the deal, Radio Rioja,
S.A. begins to be consolidated using the full integration method.

These changes in the Group structure have not had a significant impact on the consolidated
financial statements, except for the sale of Media Capital shares and the sale of Santillana's
pre-K-12 and K-12 business in Spain described above.

Associates
In May 2020, Sociedad Espafiola de Radiodifusion, S.L. sold its stake in Laudio Irratia, S.L.

Also in May, Caja Radiopolis, S.C. and Fondo Radiopolis, S.C. were created. These companies
belong to the consolidated Sistema Radiépolis, S.A. de C.V.

In July 2020 Prisa Participadas, S.L. sells its stakes in Sociedad Canaria de Televisién Regional,
S.A. and Productora Canaria de Programas, S.A.

These changes in the Group structure have not had a significant impact on the consolidated
financial statements.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies used in preparing the accompanying consolidated financial
statements for 2020 and comparative information were as follows:

a) Presentation of the consolidated financial statements

In accordance with IAS 1, the Group opted to present the assets in its consolidated balance
sheet on the basis of a current/non-current assets distinction. Also, income and expenses are
presented in the consolidated income statement according to the nature of the related item.
The statement of cash flows was prepared using the indirect method.

b) Property, plant, and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are carried at cost, net of the related accumulated depreciation
and of any impairment losses.

Property, plant and equipment acquired prior to December 31, 1983, are carried at cost,
revalued pursuant to applicable legislation. Subsequent additions are stated at cost, revalued,
if apply, pursuant to Royal Decree-Law 7/1996.

The costs of expansion, modernization or improvements leading to increased productivity,
capacity or efficiency or to a lengthening of the useful lives of the assets are capitalized.

Period upkeep and maintenance expenses are charged directly to the consolidated income
statement.
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Property, plant and equipment are depreciated by the straight-line method at annual rates
based on the years of estimated useful life of the related assets, the detail being as follows:

Years of
estimated
useful life (¥)
Buildings and structures 50
Plant and machinery 5-10
Other items of property, plant and equipment 4-10

(*) It excludes assets under IFRS 16

The gain or loss arising on the disposal or derecognition of an asset is determined as the
difference between the selling price and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in
the consolidated income statement.

c) Leases

IFRS 16 establishes the principles for the recognition, measurement and presentation of leases,
whereby all leases (with certain limited exceptions) are recognised in the consolidated balance
sheet and there is an amortisation expense for the right-of-use asset and a finance cost for the
change in value of the liability arising from the lease.

As a general rule, at the beginning of a contract, the Group assesses whether the contract is or
contains a lease, i.e. whether the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time is transferred in exchange for a consideration.

At the commencement date of the lease, the lessee recognises an asset (property, plant and
equipment or intangible) representing the right to use the underlying asset during the lease
term for an amount equal to the initial value of the lease financial liability plus any initial
direct costs incurred and payments made to the lessor before the commencement date, less
any incentives received, and plus any estimated costs that will be incurred by the lessee in
dismantling and removing the asset or returning it to the required level on the required terms
and conditions.

The right-to-use asset is subsequently measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation
and recognised impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability.
The asset is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the life of the contract, except where the
useful life of the asset is shorter. The Group has applied the requirements included in IAS 36
to determine the impairment of the right-of-use asset (see note 4f).

Also, at the commencement date of the lease, the lessee recognises a financial liability,
calculated at the present value of the lease payments payable over the lease term, discounted
by the discount rate. In this regard, lease payments include committed fixed payments less
lease incentives to be received, variable payments dependent on an index or interest rate
(measured at the index or rate on the commencement date), amounts expected to be paid for
residual value guarantees and payments for purchase options if the lessee is reasonably
certain to exercise that option.

The lease term of the contracts has been determined as the non-cancellable period considering
the options of extension and termination when there is a reasonable certainty of their
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execution and it is at the discretion of the lessee. After the commencement date, the Group
reassesses the term of the lease if there is a significant event or change in the circumstances
under its control that may affect its ability to exercise an option to extend the lease or not to
exercise an option to terminate the lease. The discount rate is calculated as the tenant's
incremental borrowing rate.

After the commencement date, the lessee values the lease liability by increasing its carrying
amount to reflect the interest accrued on the liability and reducing it by the payments made.

The amount of the lease liability is reviewed and adjusted in certain cases (generally as an
adjustment to the right-of-use asset), such as, for changes in the length of the non-cancellable
period of the contract (with regard to the initial consideration), changes in the expected
amount payable for value guarantees or in the purchase option, or changes in lease payments
due to changes in indices with regard to what would have been considered at the beginning of
the contract.

The Group chooses not to recognise in the balance sheet the liability and the right-of-use asset
corresponding to low value asset lease contracts. In this case, the amount accrued for the lease
is recognised as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the contract.

Payments associated with lease financial liabilities are included in the cash flow from
financing activities in the consolidated cash flow statement.

d) Goodwill

Any excess of the cost of the investments in the consolidated companies over the
corresponding fair value at the date of acquisition or at the date of first time consolidation,
provided that the acquisition is not after control is obtained, is allocated as follows:

— If it is attributable to specific assets and liabilities of the companies acquired, by
adjusting the carrying amounts at which they had been recognized in their balance
sheets to the fair value and whose accounting treatment was similar to that of the
same assets of the Group.

— If it is attributable to non-contingent liabilities, by recognizing it in the consolidated
balance sheet if it is probable that the outflow of resources to settle the obligation
embody economic benefits and the fair value can be measured reliably.

— If it is attributable to specific intangible assets, by recognizing it explicitly in the
consolidated balance sheet provided that the fair value at the date of acquisition can be
measured reliably.

— The remaining amount is recognized as goodwill.

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions. Once control is obtained, additional investments in
subsidiaries and decreases in ownership interest without the loss of control do not affect the
amount of goodwill. When a parent loses control of a subsidiary, it derecognizes the carrying
amount of assets (including any goodwill) and liabilities and the share of non-controlling
interests, recognizing the fair value of the consideration received and any residual ownership
in the subsidiary. The remaining difference is taken to profit or loss in the income statement
for the year.
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The assets and liabilities acquired are measured provisionally at the acquisition date, and the
provisional amounts are reviewed within a period of a year from the acquisition date.
Therefore, until the definitive fair value of the assets and liabilities has been established, the
difference between the acquisition cost and the net value of assets acquired and liabilities
assumed is provisionally recognized as goodwill.

Goodwill is considered to be an asset of the company acquired and, therefore, in the case of a
subsidiary with a functional currency other than the euro, it is valued in that subsidiary’s
functional currency and is translated to euros using the exchange rate prevailing at the
balance sheet date.

e) Intangible assets

The main items included under “Intangible assets” and the measurement bases used were as
follows:

Computer software-

“Computer software” includes the amounts paid to develop specific computer programs or the
amounts incurred in acquiring from third parties the licenses to use programs. Computer
software is amortized by the straight-line method, depending on the type of program or
development, during the period in which contribute to the generation of profits.

Prototypes-

This account includes basically prototypes for the publication of books, which are measured at
the costs incurred in materials and work performed by third parties to obtain the physical
medium required for industrial mass reproduction. The prototypes are amortized using the
straight-line method over three years from the date on which they are launched on the
market, in the case of textbooks and languages, atlases, dictionaries encyclopaedias and major
works. The cost of the prototypes of books that are not expected to be published is charged to
the income statement for the year in which the decision not to publish is taken.

Advances on copyrights-

This account includes the advances to authors, whether or not paid on account of future rights
or royalties for the right to use the different forms of intellectual property. These advances are
taken to expenses in the income statement from the date on which the book is launched on the
market, at the rate established in each contract, which is applied to the book cover price. These
items are presented in the balance sheet at cost, less the portion charged to income. This cost is
reviewed each year and, where necessary, an allowance is recognized based on the projected
sales of the related publication.

Other intangible assets-
”Other intangible assets” includes basically the amounts paid to acquire administrative

concessions for the operation of radio frequencies, which are subject to temporary
administrative concessions. These concessions are granted for renewable multi-years periods,
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in accordance with regulations of each country, and are amortized using the straight-line
method over the term of the arrangement, except in cases where the renewal costs are not
significant and the required obligations easily attainable, in which case they are deemed to be
assets with an indefinite useful life.

f) Losses due to impairment of non-financial assets

Annually, at the end of each fiscal year and, when ever, there is evidence of impairment, the
Group reviews the carrying amounts of its assets to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets might have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the amount of the
impairment loss (if any). In the case of identifiable assets that do not generate cash flows that
are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

For these purposes, a cash-generating unit is defined as the smallest identifiable group of
assets that generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other
assets or groups of assets. The Group identifies these cash-generating units, broadly, by
business and country.

Cash-generating units to which goodwill has been assigned or intangible assets with an
indefinite useful life are systematically tested for impairment at the end of each reporting
period or when the circumstances so warrant.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. Value in use
is taken to be the present value of the estimated future cash flows to derive from the asset
based on most recent budgets approved by management. These budgets include the best
estimates available of the income and costs of the cash-generating units based on industry
projections and future expectations.

These projections cover the following five years and include a terminal value that is
appropriate for each business and that is calculated as a perpetual income extrapolating the
normalized flow of year five using a constant growth rate. These cash flows are discounted to
their present value at a rate that reflects the weighted average cost of capital employed
adjusted by the country risk and business risk corresponding to each cash-generating unit.
Therefore, in 2020 the rates used ranged from 8.1% to 27.4% depending on the business being
analysed (from 6.9% to 22.7% in 2019).

If the recoverable amount is lower than the asset’s carrying amount, the related impairment
loss is recognized in the consolidated income statement for the difference.

In case the goodwill of a company with minority interests was fully recognized in the
consolidated financial statements of the parent company, the assignment of the corresponding
impairment between the parent company and the minority interests is made in accordance
with their participation in the profit and losses of the company, that means in accordance with
the participation in the share capital of the company.

Impairment losses recognized on an asset in previous years are reversed when there is a
change in the estimate of its recoverable amount by increasing the carrying amount of the
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asset up to the limit of the carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognized for the asset. The reversal of the impairment loss is
recognized immediately as income in the consolidated income statement. An impairment loss
recognized for goodwill must not be reversed.

g) Financial instruments

Financial assets are classified in three categories: (i) amortized cost, (ii) fair value with changes
in other comprehensive income (equity) and (iii) fair value with changes in profit and loss,
belonging all financial assets from the Group to the category of amortized cost.

Non-current financial assets at amortized cost-
This heading includes the following categories:

—  Loans and receivables: this includes financial assets originating from the sale of goods or
from the provision of services during the company's traffic operations or those that,
not having have any commercial substance, are not equity instruments or derivatives
and have fixed or determinable payments and are not traded in an active market,
meaning that the Group intends to keep them to obtain the contractual cash flows.
These assets are valued at amortized cost, i.e. cash delivered fewer principal
repayments, plus accrued interest receivable, in the case of loans, and the present
value of the related consideration in the case of receivables.

—  Other assets at amortized cost: financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and
established maturities for which the Group has the intention and ability to hold to
maturity to obtain the contractual cash flows.

Impairment of financial assets-

On the date of initial recognition of financial assets, the expected loss is recognised that results
from a "default" event during the next 12 months or while the contract remains in force,
depending on the evolution of the credit risk of the financial asset from its initial recognition
on the balance sheet or by applying the "simplified" models allowed by the standards for
some financial assets. The Group applied the simplified focus to recognise the expected credit
loss during the period in which the receivables are in force that result from transactions under
IFRS 15. In this way, the Group creates an allowance for a provision for credit losses on
revenue recognition, for which an NPL ratio has been determined per business and type of
customer, applied to the amount of sales by customer type.

Cash and cash equivalents-
“Cash and cash equivalents” in the consolidated balance sheet includes cash on hand and at

banks, demand deposits and other short-term highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into cash and are not subject to a risk of changes in value.
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Financial liabilities-

This category includes debits for commercial operations and debits for non-commercial
operations. These external resources are classified as current liabilities, unless the Company
has an unconditional right to defer their liquidation for at least 12 months after the balance
sheet date. Debits for commercial operations that have an expiration of no more than one year
and that do not have a contractual interest rate, both initially and subsequently, for their
nominal value when the effect of not updating the cash flows is not significant.

The financial debt is initially recognised by its fair value, also recording the directly
attributable costs incurred obtaining it. The amortised cost is valued in subsequent periods,
i.e. for the amount at which it was measured in its initial recognition, deducting the
repayments from the principal, plus any difference between the initial amount and the
amount upon expiry, using the effective interest method.

Compound financial instruments-

Compound financial instruments are non-derivative instruments that have both a liability and
an equity component.

The Group recognizes, measures and presents separately the liability and equity components
created by a single financial instrument.

The Group distributes the value of its instruments in accordance with the following criteria
which, barring error, will not be subsequently reviewed.

a. The liability component is recognized by measuring the fair value of a similar
liability that does not have an associated equity component.

b. The equity component is measured at the difference between the initial amount
and the amount assigned to the liability component.

c. The transaction costs are distributed in the same proportion.

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting--

The Group is exposed to fluctuations in the exchange rates of the various countries in which it
operates. In order to mitigate this risk, foreign currency hedges are used, on the basis of its
projections and budgets, when the market outlook so requires.

Similarly, the Group is exposed to foreign currency risk as a result of potential fluctuations in
the various currencies in which its bank borrowings and debts to third parties are
denominated. Accordingly, it uses hedging instruments for transactions of this nature when
they are material and the market outlook so requires.

The Group is also exposed to interest rate risk since all of its bank borrowings bear interest at

floating rates. In this regard, the Group arranges interest rate hedges, basically through
contracts providing for interest rate caps, when the market outlook so requires.
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Pursuant to IFRSs, changes in the value of these financial instruments are recognized as
finance income or finance costs, since by their nature they do not qualify for hedge accounting
under IFRSs.

For instruments settled at a variable number of shares or in cash, the Company recognizes a
derivative financial liability when measuring these financial instruments using the Black -
Scholes model.

h) Investments accounted for using the equity method

As discussed in note 2d, investments in companies over which the Group has significant
influence or joint control are accounted for using the equity method. The goodwill arising on
the acquisition of these companies is also included under this heading.

Investments in companies accounted for using the equity method whose carrying amount is
negative at the end of the reporting period are recognized under “Long- term provisions” (see
notes 8 y 13) at their negative excluding the financial effect given the nature of the investments.

i) Inventories

Inventories of raw materials and supplies and inventories of commercial products or finished
goods purchased from third parties are measured at the lower of their average acquisition cost
and market value.

Work in progress and finished goods produced in-house are measured at the lower of average
production cost and market value. Production cost includes the cost of materials used, labor
and in-house and third-party direct and indirect manufacturing expenses.

Obsolete, defective or slow-moving inventories are reduced to their realizable value.

The Group assesses the net realizable value of the inventories at the period end and
recognizes the appropriate write-down if the inventories are overstated. When the
circumstances that previously caused inventories to be written down no longer exist or when
there is clear evidence of an increase in net realizable value because of changed economic
circumstances, the amount of the write-down is reversed.

j) Long-term provisions

Present obligations at the consolidated balance sheet date arising from past events which
could give rise to a loss for the Group, which is uncertain as to its amount and timing, are
recognized in the consolidated balance sheet as provisions at the present value of the most
probable amount that it is considered the Group will have to pay to settle the obligation.

Provisions for taxes-
The provisions for taxes relate to the estimated amount of the tax debts whose exact amount

or date of payment has not yet been determined, since they depend on the fulfilment of
certain conditions.
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Provisions for indemnities and third-party liability-

Long term provisions also includes the estimated amount required to cover probable claims
arising from obligations assumed by the companies in the course of their commercial
operations, and probable or certain liabilities arising from litigation in progress, compensation
to workers who are terminated their labor relations or other outstanding obligations of
undetermined amount, as in the case of collateral and other similar guarantees provided by
the Group.

Likewise, it includes the amount of the companies accounted for using the equity method
with negative net value at the year end.

k) Recognition of income and expenses

Revenue is recognised when control of the goods and services is transferred to the client for
the amount at which the Group estimates that the goods and services will be traded. Revenue
and expenses are recognized on an accrual basis, regardless of when the resulting monetary or
financial flow arises.

To calculate revenue, in accordance with IFRS 15, the contract or contracts, as well as the
different obligations included in goods and service provision contracts must be identified, the
transaction price must be determined and distributed among the cited contractual obligations,
based on their respective independent sales prices or an estimation thereof and the revenue is
recognised inasmuch as the entity complies with each of its obligations.

The standard coming into force mainly affected recognition of revenue from Santillana's
digital teaching systems in the areas of Educacién UNO and Compartir.

The accounting policies applied to recognize the revenue of the Group’s main businesses are
as follows:

— Advertising revenue is recognized when the advertisement appears in the media, less
the amount of volume rebates offered to the media agencies. The average payment
period is around 90 days.

—  Revenue from book sales is recognized on the effective delivery thereof. Where the sales
of the copies are subject to sales returns, the sales returns are deducted from the
revenue recognized. Also, the amounts corresponding to rebates or trade discounts are
deducted from revenue. The collection period is variable and is established in the
different sales contracts. The sales returns estimation is calculated using historical
return percentages.

—  Revenue from digital teaching systems: the revenue from the goods and services provided
is recognised once control thereof is transferred to the client, in accordance with the
criteria described below:

o Printed teaching material and digital content: revenue is reported when
ownership is transferred to the school or student.
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o Equipment made available to schools and other services: the respective
revenue will be recognised during the school year.

The price and value of revenue from these goods and services is determined by
analysing margins and independent sale prices of the goods that have separate
marketing. These revenues are collected in two different ways, either the total at the
start of the school year or by means of payments throughout the year.

—  Revenue from the sale of newspapers and magazines is recognized on the effective delivery
thereof, net of the related estimated provision for sales returns. Also, the amounts
relating to distributors” fees are deducted from revenue. The collection for the sale of
newspapers and magazines occurs in the month in which the sales are made.

—  Revenue related to intermediation services is recognized at the amount of the fees received
when the goods or services under the transaction are supplied.

—  Other services: this item includes music sales, organization and management of events,
e- commerce and internet services.

The Group does not adjust the considerations received due to the impact of significant
financing components, as the period between the moment at which the goods and services are
transferred to the client and the moment at which the client pays for the good or service is less
than one year in nearly all of the contracts.

The commissions given to employees for obtaining contracts are recognized mainly as
expenses in the financial year instead of as a fixed amortisation asset because the amortisation
period of this asset would be less than one year.

I) Offsetting

Assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the consolidated balance sheet
when, and only when, they arise from transactions in which the Group has a contractual or
legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts and its intends to settle them on a
net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

m) Tax matters

The expense or income due to tax on the year's earnings, is calculated by adding the current
tax expense and the deferred tax expense. The current tax expense is determined by applying
the applicable tax rate to the taxable income, and deducting from that result the amount of
allowances and deductions generated and applied during the year, determining the payment
obligation to the Public Administration.

The assets and liabilities due to deferred taxes, arise from temporary differences defined as
the amounts expected to be payable or recoverable in the future which result from the
difference between the book value of assets and liabilities and their tax base, as well as non-
deductible expenses that acquire deductibility at a later time. These amounts are recorded
applying the tax rate at which they are expected to be recovered or settled to the temporary
difference.
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Deferred tax assets also arise as a result of carry forward losses and credits due to tax
deductions generated and not applied and non-deductible financial expenses.

The corresponding liability due to deferred taxes is recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, unless the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or
from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that at the time of its completion, affects neither the accounting nor
the tax profit/loss.

Meanwhile, deferred tax assets, identified using deductible temporary differences, are only
recognised if it is deemed likely that the consolidated companies will have sufficient future
taxable profits against which to use them and they do not arise from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that
affects the tax profit/loss or the accounting profit/loss. The remaining deferred tax assets
(losses and carry forward deductions) are only recognised if it is deemed likely that the
consolidated companies will have sufficient future taxable profits against which to use them.

At each accounting period end, recorded deferred taxes (assets and liabilities) are reviewed in
order to check whether they are still applicable, making the appropriate adjustments, in
accordance with the results of the analyses performed and the applicable tax rate at all times.

Royal Decree-Law 3/2016, of 2 December, modified the Transitional Provision Sixteenth (DT
16) of Law 27/2014, of November 27, on Corporate Income Tax, a Provision that establishes
the transitional regime applicable to the fiscal reversion of losses for impairment generated in
periods before January 1, 2013. Under the new regulations, with effect for tax periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2016, the reversal of said losses shall comprise at least equal
parts in the tax base corresponding to each of the first five tax periods commencing from that
date.

To the extent in which the values of the Group affected by this rule have no impediment, in
practice, in order to be able to be transmitted before the end of the period of five years, as
there are no very severe restrictions on their transferability, whether legal, contractual or of
other types, these fiscal adjustments have been considered as permanent differences in the
Group and, consequently, one fifth of the corresponding Corporate Tax expense has been
recognized as payable as a tax liability to the Treasury.

n) Result after tax from discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group, whose operations and cash flows can
be clearly distinguished from the rest (operationally and for financial reporting purposes),
that has been disposed or classified as held for sale and represents a separate major line of
business or geographical area from the Group.

The income and expenses of the discontinued operations are presented separately in the
consolidated income statement under “Result after tax from discontinued operations”.
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0) Assets classified as held for sale and liabilities associated with assets classified as held
for sale

Non-current assets classified as held for sale are considered to be groups of assets directly
associated with them, to be disposed of together as a group in a single transaction, on which it
is estimate that its realization is highly likely and within twelve months from the date of their
classification under this heading and up to the date on which the requirements established in
IFRS 5 are no longer complied with.

Assets classified as held for sale are presented separately from other assets and measured at
the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. Likewise, liabilities classified as
held for sale are presented separately form the other liabilities.

p) Share-based payments

The Group recognizes, on the one hand, goods and services received as an asset or as an
expenditure, taking into account its nature at the time it is obtained and, on the other hand,
the corresponding increase in equity if the transaction is settled with equity instruments, or
the corresponding liabilities if the transaction is settled in cash with an amount based on the
value of equity instruments.

In the case of transactions settled with equity instruments, both the services provided and
increases in equity are valued at the fair value of the equity realized, as of the date of the
agreement to realize it (date of measurement). Conversely, in case of settlement with cash,
goods and services received and the corresponding liabilities are recognized at the fair value
of the latter as of the date on which the requirements for their recognition are met.

q) Foreign currency transactions

The consolidated annual accounts of the Group are presented in euros, which is also the
functional currency of the Company. Each Group entity determines its own functional
currency and the items included in the financial statements of each company are valued using
that functional currency.

Initially, the Group companies record transactions in foreign currency at the exchange rate
prevailing on the date of the transaction in their respective functional currency. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency are translated into the functional
currency at the exchange rate in effect on the closing date. All differences arising when
settling or converting monetary items are recorded in the consolidated income statement in
the heading “Exchange differences (net)”.

r) Current/non-current classification

Debts are recognized at their effective amount and debts due to be settled within twelve
months from the balance sheet date are classified as current items and those due to be settled
within more than twelve months as non-current items.
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s) Consolidated statements of cash flows

The following terms are used in the consolidated statements of cash flows with the meanings
specified:

Changes in cash flows in the year: inflows and outflows of cash and cash equivalents,
which are short-term, highly-liquid investments that are subject to an insignificant risk
of changes in value.

Operating activities: the principal revenue-producing activities of the Group and other
activities that are not investing or financing activities.

Investing activities: the acquisition and disposal of long-term assets and other
investments not included in cash and in cash equivalents. For transactions between the
parent and non-controlling interests, these only include those representing a change of
control.

Financing activities: activities that result in changes in the size and composition of
equity and borrowings, as well as transactions between the parent and non-controlling
interests which do not represent a change of control. Additionally, the cash payment of
the financial liability for lease is included.

t) Environmental impact

In view of the printing activities carried on by certain consolidated Group companies and in
accordance with current legislation, these companies control the degree of pollution caused by
waste and emissions, and have an adequate waste disposal policy in place. The expenses
incurred in this connection, which are not significant, are expensed currently.

The evaluation carried out indicates that the Group does not have any environmental liability,
expenses, assets, provisions or contingencies that might be material with respect to its equity,
financial position or results.
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(5) PROPERTY, PLANT, AND EQUIPMENT
2020-

The changes in 2020 in “Property, plant and equipment” in the consolidated balance sheet
were as follows:

Thousands of euros
Changes in
Balance at | Monetary | Translation scope - . Balance at
12/31/2019 | adjustment | adjustment of Additions | Disposals | Transfers 31/12/2020
consolidation

Cost:
Land and buildings 48,400 239 (2,899) 238 104 (75) g 46,007
Plant and machinery 122,394 305 (3,561), 261 1,629 (1,042), (4,301), 115,685
Other items of property, plant and 76,449 2,418 (8,984) 2o 5168 (1L257) (2020 72,010
equipment
Advances and equipment in the 654 1 43) i 411 i (996) 2
course
Total cost 247,897 2,962] (15,487) 735 73120  (2374) (7,317) 233728
Accumulated depreciation:
Buildings (15,477), (202) 956 (81) (520) 51 g (15,273)
Plant and machinery (105,948) (269) 2,770, (239)  (4,421) 944 4,685  (102,478)
Other items of property, plantand | ) 45, (1,881) 6,939 @32)|  (6308) 909 1816  (60,172)
equipment
Total accumulated depreciation (182,840) (2,352) 10,665 (552)| (11,249) 1,904 6,501 (177,923)
Impairment losses:
Land and buildings (5,856), E . g (1,423), 12| g (7,267),
Plant and machinery (257), g - - (393) - - (650),
Othfer items of property, plant and (362) | 68 | (219) 23 | (490)
equipment
Total impairment losses (6,475) - 68| | (2,035) 35| B (8,407)
Net property, plant and equip. 58,582 610 4,754) 183| (5,972) (435) (816) 47,398
Cost of property, plant and
equipment in lease:
Land and buildings 135,472, 768 (5,253), 42 5,277 (3,575), (8,687), 124,044
Other items of property, plant and 39,375 ] (8,642) 1 8101 (5925 (2465) 30444
equipment
Total cost of property, plant and 174,847 768 (13,895), 42 13378 (9,500 (11,152) 154,488
equipment in lease
Accumulated depreciation of
property, plant and equipment in
lease:
Buildings (18,903), (197) 1,302 4 (17,190) 3,493 4,131 (27,364)
Other items of property, plantand | - 3 7g) . 5,634 1 209 5749 1561 (19,058)
equipment
Total accumulated depreciation
of property, plant and equipment (42,701) (197) 6,936| 4 (25,394) 9,242 5,692 (46,422)
in lease
iretlagiand 132,146 571 (6,959) 42 (12,016) @58)  (5460) 108,066
equipment in lease
TOTAL NET PROPERTY,
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 190,728| 1,181 (11,713), 225  (17,988) (693) (6,276), 155,464
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2019-

The changes in 2019 in “Property, plant and equipment” in the consolidated balance sheet
were as follows:

Thousands of euros
Initial Changes in
Balanceat | . 12: ¢ Monetary | Translation scope Additi Di Is | Transf Balance at
12/31/2018 1;%?12 adjustment | adjustment of 1HONS | LISposals | Lransters | 51 15 /2019
consolidation

Cost:
Land and buildings 62,211 - 295 (692) (850) 563 (3,108)| (10,019) 48,400
Plant and machinery 237,801 (2,032) 545 (1,087) (167) 3,067| (11,037)| (104,696) 122,394
Other items of property, plantand | 116 qa1|  (26377) 4,017 (2,883) 72| 7476|  @276)| (19661)| 76449
equipment
Advances and equipment in the 2,005 ) B 7 ) 2,382 3 (3,757) 654
course
Total cost 418,118 (28,409) 4,857 (4,655) (945)| 13488 (16,424)| (138133)| 247,897
Accumulated depreciation:
Buildings (25,434) - (274) 467 100 (1,132) 2,897 7,899 (15,477)
Plant and machinery (208,672) 377 (484) 1,005 168 (7,240) 10,092 98,806 (105,948)
Other items of property, plantand | - g) gg0)| 17485 (3,108) 2477 G| 729  1535| 18566 (61415
equipment
Total accumulated depreciation (325,186) 17,862 (3,866) 3,949 217| (15,611) 14,524 125,271| (182,840)
Impairment losses:
Land and buildings (4,058) - - - - (2,630) - 832 (5,856)
Plant and machinery (921) - - - - - 664 - (257)
Othfer items of property, plant and (264) } ) @) } (%) 5 } (362)
equipment
Total impairment losses (5,243) - - @) - (2,726) 666 832 (6,475)
Net property, plant and equip. 87,689| (10,547) 991 (710) (728) (4,849) (1,234)| (12,030) 58,582
Cost of property, plant and
equipment in lease:
Buildings -| 133,363 1,175 (1,599) - 9,151 (968) (5,650) 135,472
Plant and machinery - 2,032 - - - 1,874 - (3,906) -
Other items of property, plant and | 35257 - 21 | s3] @7yl @9 39375
equipment
Total cost of property, plant and -| 170,652 1175 (1,578) | 19162  (3689)| (10875)| 174,847
equipment in lease
Accumulated depreciation of
property, plant and equipment in
lease:
Buildings - - (289) 371 -1 (20,993) 879 1,129 (18,903)
Plant and machinery - (377) - - - (332) - 709 -
Other items of property, plant and -l (7487) - 6 | 385 2628 40| (23,798)
equipment
Total accumulated depreciation
of property, plant and equipment -l (17,864) (289) 377 -l (30,710) 3,507 2,278 (42,701)
in lease
el -| 152,788 886 (1,201) -| @158 82| @597 132146
equipment in lease
TOTAL NET PROPERTY,
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 87,689 142,241 1,877 (1,911) (728)| (16,397) (1,416) | (20,627) 190,728

Monetary adjustment and translation adjustment-

The column “Monetary adjustment” includes the effect of hyperinflation in Venezuela and
Argentina in 2020 and 2019. Furthermore, the column “Translation adjustment” includes the
impact of exchange rates variation in Latin America, highlighting the contribution in 2020 of
Brazil andArgentina (Brazil, Chile, Argentina and Venezuela in 2019).
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Additions-
The most significant additions in 2020 were as follows:

—  “Plant and machinery”, in the amount of EUR 1,629 thousand (EUR 3,067 thousand in
2019), mainly due to investments made by Prisa in the remodeling of its new
headquarter in Miguel Yuste.

—  “Other items of property, plant and equipment”, in the amount of EUR 11,716 thousand
(EUR 12,953 thousand in 2019), mainly due to the acquisition of technological
equipment in Santillana for use in the classroom by students and teachers integrated
into teaching systems (including the additions under lease) and the acquisition of
computer to the Group.

Disposals-

In 2020, the disposals mainly included in the heading "Plant and machinery" the derecognizing
of the assets of the printing plant of Seville, fully amortized and / or impairment.

In 2019, the disposals mainly included in the headings "Land and buildings" and "Plant and
machinery" the derecognizing of the assets of the printing plant of Barcelona, fully amortized
and / or impairment.

Transfers-

In 2020, the transfer column includes the balances of property, plant and equipment of
Santillana Spain as of September 30, 2020, the date when the assets of these companies were
reclassified to “Non-current assets held for sale”.

In 2019, the transfer column included the balances of property, plant and equipment of Media
Capital Group as of August 31, 2019, the date when the assets of Media Capital Group were
reclassified to “Non-current assets held for sale”.

Impairment losses-

In 2020 there is registered an impairment of EUR 1,669 thousand of the printing plants in
Lugo and Seville.

In 2019 there was registered an impairment of EUR 1,753 thousand of the printing plant in
Seville in the heading "Land and buildings".

Others matters-
The balance in the property, plant and equipment in lease, mainly correspond with the
activation of the contract leases of offices and warehouses of the Group for a net amount of

EUR 96,680 thousand as of December 31, 2020 (EUR 116,569 thousand as of December 31,
2019). In addition Education includes technological equipment in lease for use in the
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classroom by students and teachers integrated into teaching systems for a net amount of EUR
8,097 thousand, in the heading "Other items of property, plant and equipment” (EUR 8,757
thousand as of December 31, 2019).

The property, plant and equipment amortization expense recorded in 2020 totalled EUR
34,122 thousand (EUR 37,711 thousand in 2019) of which EUR 18,387 thousand corresponding
to the amortization of property, plant and equipment held under leases (EUR 19,829 thousand
in 2019).

There are no restrictions on holding title to the property, plant, and equipment other than
those indicated in note 12b.

There are no significant future property, plant, and equipment purchase commitments.

At December 31, 2020, the Prisa Group’s assets included fully amortized property, plant, and
equipment amounting to EUR 189,019 thousand (December 31, 2019: EUR 275,647 thousand).

The Group companies take out insurance policies to cover the potential risks to which the
various items of property, plant, and equipment are exposed. At December 31, 2020 and at
December 31, 2019, the insurance policies taken out sufficiently covered the related risks.
GOODWILL

2020-

The detail of the goodwill relating to fully and proportionately consolidated Group
companies and of the changes therein in 2020 is as follows:

Thousands of euros
Changes in
Balance a | Translation scope of Impairment| Transfer Balance at

12/31/2019| adjustment | consolidation P 12/31/2020

/additions
Editora Moderna, Ltda. 48,975 (14,142) - - - 34,833
Grupo Latino de Radiodifusién Chile, Ltda. 48,656 (1,816) h (16,602) h 30,238
Propulsora Montafiesa, S.A. 8,608 7 7 7 7 8,608
Sociedad Espafiola de Radiodifusién, S.L. 35,585 h h h (8,368) 27,217
Other companies 9,249 (61) 573 - 1,844 11,605
Total 151,073 (16,019) 573 (16,602) (6,524) 112,501
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The detail, by business segment, of the goodwill relating to fully consolidated Group
companies and of the changes therein in 2020 is as follows:

Thousands of euros
Changes in
Balance at | Translation| scope of Impairment| Transfer Balance at
12/31/2019 | adjustment | consolidation P 12/31/2020
/additions
Radio 99,687 (1,816) 573 (16,602) (5,866) 75,976
Education 50,728 (14,203), - - - 36,525
Other 658 e e . (658) .
Total 151,073 (16,019) 573 (16,602) (6,524) 112,501
2019-

The detail of the goodwill relating to fully and proportionately consolidated Group
companies and of the changes therein in 2019 is as follows:

Thousands of euros
Changes in
Balance a |Translation| scope of Impairment| Transfer Balance at

31/12/2018 | adjustment | consolidation P 31/12/2019

/additions
Editora Moderna, Ltda. 49,566 (591) - - - 48,975
Grupo Latino de Radiodifusién Chile, Ltda. 51,377 @721) - - - 48,656
Grupo Media Capital, SGPS, S.A. 254,460 - -l (76379)| (178,081) -
Propulsora Montafiesa, S.A. 8,608 - - - - 8,608
Sociedad Espafiola de Radiodifusién, S.L. 35,585 - - - - 35,585
Other companies 9,252 ®) 866 (866) 9,249
Total 408,848 (3,315) 866 (77,245)| (178,081) 151,073

The detail, by business segment, of the goodwill relating to fully consolidated Group
companies and of the changes therein in 2019 is as follows:

Thousands of euros
Changes in
Balance at | Translation| scope of Impairment| Transfer Balance at

31/12/2018 | adjustment | consolidation P 31/12/2019

/additions
Radio 102,408 (2,721) 866 (866) - 99,687
Education 51,322 (594) - - - 50,728
Other 255,118 - - (76,379)| (178,081) 658
Total 408,848 (3,315) 866 (77,245)| (178,081) 151,073

In the “Other” segment, in September 2019 and as a result of the value of Vertix and Media
Capital at the transaction price less costs of sale, an impairment of EUR 76,379 thousand was
recorded in goodwill allocated to this company in the section “Result after tax from discontinued
operations” in the consolidated income statement (see note 17). The remaining amount (EUR
178,081 thousand) was reclassified as a non-current asset held for sale.
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Impairment tests

At the end of each reporting period, or whenever there are indications of impairment, the
Group tests goodwill for impairment to determine whether it has suffered any permanent loss
in value that reduces its recoverable amount of goodwill at an amount less than the net cost
recorded.

To perform the above mentioned impairment test, the goodwill is allocated to one or more
cash-generating units. The recoverable amount of each cash- generating unit is the higher of
value in use and the net selling price that would be obtained from the assets associated with
the cash-generating unit. In the case of the main cash-generating units to which goodwill has
been allocated (Editora Moderna, Ltda.,, Grupo Latino de Radiodifusiéon Chile, Ltda. and
Sociedad Espanola de Radiodifusién, S.L. and Propulsora Montafiesa, S.A.), their recoverable
amount is their value in use.

Value in use was calculated on the basis of the estimated future cash flows based on the
business plans most recently elaborated by management. These business plans include the
best estimates available of income and costs of the cash-generating units using industry
projections and future expectations.

These projections cover the following five years and include a terminal value that is
appropriate for each business, applying a constant expected growth rate ranging from 0% to
2.5%, as in 2019. The expected growth rate that has been used in the most relevant impairment
tests (Editora Moderna, Ltda. , Grupo Latino de Radiodifusién Chile, Ltda. and Sociedad
Espafiola de Radiodifusion, S.L. and Propulsora Montafiesa, S.A.) is located between 0% and
1.5% in 2020 and in 2019.

In order to calculate the present value of these flows, they are discounted at a rate that reflects
the weighted average cost of capital employed adjusted for the country risk and business risk
corresponding to each cash-generating unit. Therefore, in 2020 the rates used ranged from
8.1% to 27.4% (6.9% and 22.7% in 2019) depending on the business being analysed. The rate
that has been used for the most relevant impairment tests (Editora Moderna, Ltda. and Grupo
Latino de Radiodifusiéon Chile, Ltda. and Sociedad Espafiola de Radiodifusién, S.L. and
Propulsora Montafiesa, S.A.) is between 8.1% and 13% (7% and 12% in 2019).

Results of the impairment tests-

- GLR Chile

The result of these tests has mean to the recording of an impairment of EUR 16,602 thousand
in the goodwill of Grupo Latino de Radiodifusion Chile, Ltda. (GLR Chile) mainly as a result
of the impact of COVID-19 on future projections, which has led to a decrease in the projected
long-term growth of GLR Chile. In this regard, the pandemic has adversely affected
advertising revenues, increasing their volatility, and has therefore led to a drop in
expectations regarding the future growth of the advertising business. To a lesser extent, the
impairment of goodwill results from an increase in the applicable discount rate, due to both
the effects of COVID-19 and to geopolitical uncertainties in the country.
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In accordance with the estimates and projections available to the Company's Directors, the
expected future cash flows allocable to the rest of the cash-generating units to which goodwill
is allocated indicate that the net value of each goodwill allocated as of December 31, 2020 may
be recovered.

Sensitivity to changes in key assumptions-

Editora Moderna, Ltda.

To determine the sensitivity of the calculation of value in use to changes in the basic
assumptions, the discount rate has been increased by 0.5%. In this case, the recoverable
value would exceed the book value by EUR 81.4 million. In the event that the expected
growth rate from the fifth year was reduced by 0.5%, the recoverable amount would
exceed the book value by EUR 83.4 million.

Grupo Latino de Radiodifusion Chile, Ltda.

To determine the sensitivity of the calculation of value in use to changes in the basic
assumptions, the discount rate has been increased by 0.5%. In this case, the recoverable
value would exceed the book value by EUR 1.7 million. In the event that the expected
growth rate from the fifth year was reduced by 0.5%, the recoverable amount would
exceed the book value by EUR 2.6 million. In this sense, the impairment of goodwill said
above was accounted as of June 30, 2020.

Sociedad Espafiola de Radiodifusion, S.L. and Propulsora Montafiesa, S.A.

To determine the sensitivity of the calculation of value in use to changes in the basic
assumptions, the discount rate has been increased by 0.5%. In this case, the recoverable
value would exceed the book value by EUR 151.8 million. In the event that the expected
growth rate from the fifth year was reduced by 0.5%, the recoverable amount would
exceed the book value by EUR 156.3 million.

40



?)

».EPRISA

Consolidated financial statements for 2020

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

2020-

The changes in 2020 in “Intangible assets” in the consolidated balance sheet were as follows:

Thousands of euros

Changes in

st | Moy | Trlton | ol | adions | Dipossts | Trnstrs | e
Cost:
Computer software 147,492, 395 (4,662) 39 11,100 (3,971), (10,800), 139,593
Prototypes 232,065 3,239 (38,338), - 25,087 (4,638), (39,527), 177,888
Advances on copyrights 7,286 27| (536) - 828 (524) (4,881) 2,200
Other intangible assets 48,439 48 (1,836) 131 163 (2,568), (852) 43,525
Total cost 435,282 3,709 (45,372) 170 37,178, (11,701), (56,060), 363,206
Accumulated amortization:
Computer software (114,742) (327), 3,591 (28) (10,290) 3,072 10,254 (108,470)
Prototypes (171,119) (3,064) 28,787, - (26,854) 4,272 29,989  (137,989)
Advances on copyrights (5,304) E 331 - (521) 147 4,447 (900)
Other intangible assets (21,732), (48) 830 (125) (400), 175 1,392 (19,914)
Total accumulated amortization (312,897) (3,439) 33,539 (153) (38,071) 7,666 46,082 (267,273)
Impairment losses:
Computer software (4,821) E E - (186) 715| - (4,292)
Prototypes (1,770), 2), 312 - (582), 462, 28 (1,552),
Advances on copyrights (744) E 53 - (204) 69 332 (494)
Other intangible assets (481) g - - (2,729) 2,570 - (640)
Total impairment losses (7,816), (2), 365| - (3,701) 3,816 360 (6,978)
Net intangible assets 114,569 268| (11,468) 17 (4,594) (219) (9,618), 88,955
Cost of intangible assets in lease:
Other intangible assets 14,274 - (1,361) - 3,743 (1,033), - 15,623
;l;(;t;l cost of intangible assets in 14,274 | (1,361)] _ 3,743 (1,033) | 15,623
Accumulated amortization of
intangible assets in lease:
Other intangible assets (3,835 - 295 - (4,528) 1,033 - (7,035),
Total a_ccumulatecll amortization of (3,835) | 295 _ 4,528) 1,033 ] (7,035)
intangible assets in lease:
Net intangible assets in lease 10,439 - (1,066)| - (785) - - 8,588
TOTAL NET INTAGIBLE ASSETS 125,008 268| (12,534) 17 (5,379) (219) (9,618), 97,543
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2019-

The changes in 2019 in “Intangible assets” in the consolidated balance sheet were as follows:

Thousands of euros

st | impuctor | Mones | Torshien | pggons | Diposs | Tt | S,
Cost:
Computer software 143,114 - 533 (680) 14,494 (1,617) (8,352) 147,492
Prototypes 202,771 - 4,704 (6,461) 37,855 (6,371) (433) 232,065
Advances on copyrights 7,604 - 1 (58) 905 (951) (215) 7,286
Audiovisual rights 6,056 - - 69 - - (6,125) -
Other intangible assets 69,157 - 86 (947) 350 (1,320) (18,887) 48,439
Total cost 428,702 - 5,324 (8,077) 53,604 (10,259) (34,012) 435,282
Accumulated amortization:
Computer software (113,003) - (428) 625 (11,026) 1,211 7,879 (114,742)
Prototypes (147,051) - (4,336) 5,881 (29,576) 3,726 237 (171,119)
Advances on copyrights (5,165) - - 18 (672) 399 116 (5,304)
Audiovisual rights (6,056) - - (69) - - 6,125 -
Other intangible assets (38,610) - (85) 867 (1,247) 1,040 16,303 (21,732)
Total accumulated amortization (309,885) - (4,849) 7,322 (42,521) 6,376 30,660 (312,897)
Impairment losses:
Computer software (4,652) - - - (430) 261 - (4,821)
Prototypes (1,376) - (53) 59 (2,933) 2,203 330 (1,770)
Advances on copyrights (654) - 2) 15 (128) 25 - (744)
Other intangible assets (891) - - - (1,214) 715 909 (481)
Total impairment losses (7,573) - (55) 74 (4,705) 3,204 1,239 (7,816)
Net intangible assets 111,244 - 420 (681) 6,378 (679) (2,113) 114,569
Cost of intangible assets in lease:
Other intangible assets - 9,118 - - 5,709 (553) - 14,274
;l'otal cost of intangible assets in B 9,118 _ B 5,709 (553) _ 14274

ease

Accumulated amortization of
intangible assets in lease:
Other intangible assets - - - 7 (4,395) 553 - (3,835)
Total a'ccumulatez.:l amortization of _ _ _ 7 (4,395) 553 _ (3,835)
intangible assets in lease:
Net intangible assets in lease - 9,118 - 7 1,314 - - 10,439
TOTAL NET INTAGIBLE ASSETS 111,244 9,118 420 (674) 7,692 (679) (2,113) 125,008

Monetary adjustment and translation adjustment-

The column “Monetary adjustment” includes the effect of hyperinflation in Argentina y
Venezuela in 2020 and 2019. Furthermore, the column “Translation adjustment” includes the
impact of exchange rates variation in Latin America, highlighting the contribution in 2020 of
Brazil and Argentina (Brazil, Chile, Argentina and Venezuela in 2019).
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Additions-

The most significant additions in 2020 were as follows:

— “Prototypes,” amounting to EUR 25,087 thousand (EUR 37,855 thousand in 2019),
relating to new prototypes for the publication of books at Grupo Santillana, mainly in
Brazil.

—  “Computer software,” amounting to EUR 11,100 thousand (EUR 14,494 thousand in
2019), relating to the computer software acquired and/or developed by third parties
for Group companies, mainly in Santillana, Prisa Noticias and Radio Spain.

Additions includes the investments of the companies sold from Santillana Spain until
September 30, 2020 amounting to EUR 5,666 thousand, the date when the intangible assets of
these companies were reclassified in the section “Non-current assets held for sale”, as described
in notes 1 and 3. The additions of Santillana Spain as of December 31, 2020 amounted to EUR
7,360 thousand.

Disposals-

Grupo Santillana derecognized, in 2020, EUR 4,272 thousand of fully depreciated prototypes
(December 31, 2019: EUR 3,726 thousand).

Additionally, in 2020 and 2019, the different business segments derecognized fully
depreciated or impairment computer software.

Transfers-

In 2020, the “Transfer” column includes the balances of intangible assets of companies of
Santillana Spain as of September 30, 2020, the date when the assets of these companies were
reclassified to “Non-current assets held for sale”.

In 2019, the “Transfer” column included the balances of property, plant and equipment of
Grupo Media Capital as of August 31, 2019, the date when the assets of Grupo Media Capital
were reclassified to “Non-current assets held for sale”.

Impairment losses-

An impairment of administrative concessions of GLR Chile has been accounted for an amount
of EUR 2,376 thousand.

Others matters-
The intangible asset increased in 2019 due to the activation of the leases of administrative

concessions of Radio, for a net amount at December 31, 2020 of EUR 8,588 thousand (EUR
10,439 thousand in 2019).
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The intangible asset amortization expense recorded in 2020 totalled EUR 36,515 thousand
(EUR 39,006 thousand in 2019), of which EUR 4,531 thousand corresponding to the
amortization of intangible assets held under leases (EUR 4,395 thousand in 2019).

“Other intangible assets” include administrative concessions acquired amounting to EUR 22,923
thousand (EUR 26,281 thousand in 2019), which are considered to be intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives because it is highly probable that they will be renewed and the related
costs are not material.

At the end of each reporting period, the residual useful life of these concessions is analyzed in
order to ensure that it continues to be indefinite; if this is not the case, the concessions are
amortized.

At December 31, 2020, the Prisa Group’s assets included fully amortized intangible assets
amounting to EUR 190,006 thousand (December 31, 2019: EUR 219,234 thousand).

There are no restrictions on holding title to the intangible assets other than those indicated in
note 12b.

There are no future relevant intangible asset purchase commitments other than those
indicated in note 25.

INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY METHOD
2020-

The changes in 2020 in “Investments accounted for using the equity method” in the consolidated
balance sheet were as follows:

Thousand of euros
Changes in Share of
Balance at | Translation o ge of Dividends results / Transfers | Others Balance at
12/31/2019 | adjustment pe ot Impairment 12/31/2020
consolidation
losses

Sistema Radi6polis, S.A. de C.V. 46,624 (7,232), g (12,418) (8,775), 5,866] - 24,065
Other companies 2,087 46 (2,629) (14) 317 369 24 614
Total 48,711 (6,772) (2,629) (12,432) (8,458), 6,235 24 24,679

During 2020, changes in “Investments accounted for using the equity method” in the
accompanying consolidated balance sheets is mainly due to the dividend distributed by
Sistema Radiopolis, S.A. de C.V. (see note 22), the participation in the profit of the company,
for an amount of EUR 1,636 thousand, the impairment recorded in the investment of the
aforementioned company for an amount of EUR 10,411 thousand and by the effect of the
exchange rate.

The impairment test of net investment in Sistema Radidpolis, S.A. de C.V. has had on the
recoverable value of this investment which value in use has been calculated based on the
forecasts of the next 5 years, including a terminal value in which a rate of constant expected
growth of between 0.5% and 1.5% (between 0.5% and 1.5% in 2019). In order to calculate the
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present value of these flows, they are discounted at a rate that reflects the weighted average
cost of capital employed adjusted for the country risk and business risk corresponding to each
cash-generating unit. Therefore, in 2020 the rates used ranged from 12% to 12.5% (between
11% to 11.5 in 2019).

The result of this test has meant recording of an impairment of the net investment of EUR
10,411 thousand under the heading “Result of companies accounted for using the equity method” in
the accompanying consolidated income statement. This impairment is mainly a consequence
of the impact of COVID-19 on future projections, which has adversely affected advertising
revenues of Radiépolis and to the projected long-term growth. To a lesser extent, the
impairment of the investment results from an increase in the applicable discount rate.

2019-

The changes in 2019 in “Investments accounted for using the equity method” in the consolidated
balance sheet were as follows:

Thousands of euros
Changes in Share of
Balance at | Translation o ge of results / Transfers Disposals/ | Balance at
31/12/2018 | adjustment pe ot Impairment Dividends | 31/12/2019
consolidation
losses
Sistema Radiépolis, S.A. de C.V. 40,701 2,460 - 3,468 - ) 46,624
Other companies 2,376 87) 53 (791) 579 (43) 2,087
Total 43,077 2,373 53 2,677 579 48) 48,711

During 2019, changes in “Investments accounted for using the equity method” in the
accompanying consolidated balance sheets, is mainly due to the equity in Sistema Radiépolis,
S.A. de C.V. profits amounting to EUR 3,468 thousand and to the exchange rate effect.

At December 31, 2020 and at December 31, 2019, the Group had ownership interests in
companies accounted for using the equity method, the net negative value of which is
recognized under “Long-term provisions” (see note 13).

CURRENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

a) Inventories

The detail of “Inventories,” in thousands of euros, at December 31, 2020 and at December 31,
2019, is as follows:

12/31/2020 12/31/2019
Cost Write-downs Carrying Cost Write-downs Carrying
amount amount
Finished goods 61,161 (25,111) 36,050 95,599 (30,673) 64,926
Work in progress 1,313 - 1,313 3,652 - 3,652
Raw materials and other supplies 8,842, (497) 8,345 16,700 (855) 15,845
Total 71,316 (25,608) 45,708 115,951 (31,528) 84,423
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At December 31, 2020, “Finished goods” includes publications amounting to a net EUR 35,553
thousand (2019: EUR 64,075 thousand). “Raw materials and other supplies” include mainly

paper.

The detail of the changes in 2020 in “Inventories- Write-downs” is as follows:

Thousands of euros
Balance at | Translation Cha:}‘?ee for Amounts Transfers Balance at
12/31/2019 | adjustment used 12/31/2020
year/Excess
(31,528) 4,521 (5,206) 127 6,478 (25,608)

b) Trade and other receivables

The detail of the changes in 2020 and 2019 in “Trade and other receivables- Allowances” is as
follows:

Thousands of euros
Ch i
Balance at | Translation S:‘;iezfm ChatrE: for Amounts Transfers Balance at
12/31/2019 | adjustment | consolidation year/Excess used 12/31/2020
(61,364) 6,210 (13) (692) (1,043) 1,116 (55,786)
Thousands of euros
Balance at | Translation Cha:f: for Amounts Transfers Balance at
12/31/2018 | adjustment used 12/31/2019
year/Excess
(67,025) (187) (2,936) 5,106 3,678 (61,364)

The impact of IFRS 9 entails an allowance for a provision for credit losses on revenue
recognition, for which an NPL ratio has been determined per business and type of customer,
applied to the amount of sale by customer type.

The most significant heading included in “Trade and other receivables” is “Trade receivables for
sale and services” amounting to EUR 201,182 thousand, net of allowance at December 31, 2020
(EUR 316,524 at December 31, 2019). The details of the aging of this amount is as follows:

Thousands of euros

Balance at Balance at

12/31/2020 12/31/2019
0-3 months 182,275 293,117
3-6 months 6,304 14,868
6 months - 1 year 9,109 7,680
1 year- 3 years 3,353 745
More than 3 years 141 114
Total 201,182 316,524
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¢) Cash and cash equivalents

The balance of the heading "Cash and cash equivalents" in the accompanying consolidated
balance sheet to December 31, 2020 amounts to EUR 221,879 thousand (EUR 166,580 thousand
at December 31, 2019). This amount included approximately EUR 84,127 thousand belong to
companies of Radio and Education segments located in Latin America. It also includes EUR
10,000 thousand received by the Company under the escrow agreement associated with the
Vertix sale agreement by Cofina in 2019. This amount has been under dispute with Cofina
since the breach of the aforementioned sale agreement by Cofina in April 2020, so the
company will not have access to this sum until the dispute is resolved. That is the reason the
Company maintains accounted a liability in the heading “Other non-trade payables” of the
consolidated balance sheet for the same amount.

In 2019, this amount included approximately EUR 81,000 thousand belong to companies of
Radio and Education segments located outside of Spain and EUR 10.000 thousand received
under the escrow agreement described above.

d) Other non-trade payables

The heading “Other non-trade payables” of the accompanying consolidated balance sheet at
December 31, 2020 amounts to EUR 39,656 thousand (EUR 52,591 thousand at December 31,
2019) and mainly include remuneration payable.

e) Other current liabilities

The heading “Other current liabilities” of the accompanying consolidated balance sheet at
December 31, 2020 amounts to EUR 29,967 thousand (EUR 35,767 thousand at December 31,
2019) and includes accrual adjustments generated by unfulfilled obligations, mainly generated
in the Educational segment.

The detail of the changes in 2020 in accrual adjustments is as follows:

Thousands of euros
Translation
Balance at | adjustment/ | Additions/ | Amounts Balance at
12/31/2019 | Monetary Disposals used 12/31/2020
adjustment
35,767 3,466 15,511 (24,777) 29,967

As of December 31, 2020, the execution obligations pending to be paid amounted to EUR
29,967 thousand, which will mainly be paid and transferred to the consolidated income
statement during the year 2021 and correspond, mainly, to recorded collections or invoices
issued in 2020 income will accrue throughout the following year, as the performance
obligations associated with the contracts are executed.
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The detail of the changes in 2019 in accrual adjustments was as follows:

Thousands of euros
Translation
Balance at | adjustment/ | Additions/ | Amounts Transfer Balance at
12/31/2018 | Monetary | Disposals used ansters 1 12/31/2019
adjustment
32,129 3,430 81,239 (78,660) (2,371) 35,767

As of December 31, 2019, the execution obligations pending to be paid amounted to EUR
35,767 thousand. Almost all of them have been paid and transferred to the consolidated
income statement during the year 2020 and corresponded, mainly, to recorded collections or
invoices issued in 2019 whose income has accrued throughout 2020, as the performance
obligations associated with the contracts has been executed.

(10) NON-CURRENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES HELD FOR SALE
Since September 2019 the assets and liabilities of Media Capital and Vertix are presented in the
consolidated balance sheet as “Assets classified as held for sale” and “Liabilities associated with

assets classified as held for sale”. In November 2020, following the sale operations described in
note 3, Media Capital left the scope consolidation perimeter.
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The contribution of the aforementioned companies in each of the main balance sheet entries at
December 31, 2019 is as follows (in thousands of euros):

12/31/2019
Non-current assets- 153,924
Property, plant, and equipment 23,015
Goodwill 117,930
Intangible assets 9,163
Other non-current assets 3,816
Current assets- 122,865
Inventories 78,604
Trade receivables and other receivables 41,295
Cash and cash equivalents 2,966
Total assets 276,789
Non-current liabilities- 69,276
Non-current bank borrowings 60,806
Other non-current liabilities 8,470
Current liabilities- 92,037
Commercial creditors 40,690
Other non-trade payables 12,025
Current bank borrowings 23,991
Public administrations 12,117
Other current liabilities 3,214
Total liabilities 161,313

From October 2020, the assets and liabilities of Santillana Spain are presented in the
consolidated balance sheet as “Assets classified as held for sale” and “Liabilities associated with
assets classified as held for sale”. In December 2020, following the sale transaction described in
note 3, the subsidiaries of Santillana Spain subject to the transaction were removed from the
Group’s consolidation perimeter.

Therefore, on 31 December 2020 the assets and liabilities of the Radio companies located in
Argentina, which were sold in January 2021, are classified as “Assets classified as held for sale”
and “Liabilities associated with assets classified as held for sale”.

(11) EQUITY

a) Share capital

On January 1, 2020, the share capital of Prisa amounts to EUR 666,131 thousand and is
represented by 708,650,193 ordinary shares, all of which belong to the same class and series,
each with a par value of 0.94 euros, and have been fully paid up.

At the General Shareholders Meeting held on June 29, 2020 (the “General Meeting”), the
following resolutions were passed:
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i. Share capital reduction by an amount of EUR 320,762 thousand to offset losses,
by decreasing the par value of shares by EUR 0.452637587, to EUR 0.487362413 per

share.

ii. Reduction of the share capital by an amount of EUR 7,086 thousand to increase
the legal reserve account, by decreasing the par value of the shares by EUR 0.01, to
EUR 0,477362413 per share.

iii. Reduction of the share capital by an amount of EUR 267,418 thousand, through
the reduction of the par value of the Company’s shares by EUR 0.377362413, to EUR
0.10 per share, to set up a reserve which will only be available under the same

requirements as those for the share capital reduction.

As of December 31, 2020, the share capital of Prisa amounts to EUR 70,865 thousand and is
represented by 708,650,193 ordinary shares, all of which belong to the same class and series,
each with a par value of 0.10 euros, and have been fully paid up.

On December 31, 2020, the significant shareholders of Prisa, according to information
published on the website of the Comisién Nacional del Mercado de Valores (“CNMV”) and in
some cases, information that has been provided by the shareholders to the Company, are the

following:
Number of Number of Total % of
Shareholder’s Name Direct Voting Indirect Voting Voting Rights
Rights Rights 1)
AMBER CAPITAL UK LLP (2) - 211,474,843 29.84%
HSBC HOLDINGS PLC (3) - 64,263,202 9.07%
TELEFONICA, S.A. 63,986,958 - 9.03%
RUCANDIO, S.A. - 53,938,328 7.61%
INTERNATIONAL MEDIA GROUP, S.A.R.L (4) 36,422,971 - 5.14%
GHO NETWORKS, S.A. DE CV - 35,570,206 5.02%
BANCO SANTANDER, S.A. (5) 17,239,369 17,017,746 4.83%
MELQART OPPORTUNITIES MASTER FUND LTD (6) - 32,709,063 4.62%
INVERSORA CARSO, S.A. DE CV (7) - 30,509,047 4.30%
CARLOS FERNANDEZ GONZALEZ (8) - 28,539,429 4.03%
The aforementioned indirect shareholding is held as follows:
Number of Total %
Indirect Shareholder’s Name Direct Shareholder’s Name Direct Voting of Voting
Rights Rights
AMBER CAPITAL UK LLP AMBER ACTIVE INVERSTORS LIMITED 101,987,187 14.39%
AMBER CAPITAL UK LLP AMBER GLOBAL OPPORTUNITIES LIMITED 22,319,173 3.15%
AMBER CAPITAL UK LLP OVIEDO HOLDINGS, S.A.R.L 87,168,483 12.30%
HSBC HOLDINGS PLC HSBC BANK PLC 64,263,202 9.07%
RUCANDIO, S.A. RUCANDIO INVERSIONES, SICAV, S.A. 90,456 0.01%
RUCANDIO, S.A. PROMOTORA DE PUBLICACIONES, S.L. 125,949 0.02%
RUCANDIO, S.A. AHERLOW INVERSIONES, S.L. 53,721,923 7.58%
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Number of Total %
Indirect Shareholder’s Name Direct Shareholder’s Name Direct Voting of Voting
Rights Rights
GHO NETWORKS, S.A. DE CV CONSORCIO TRANSPORTISTA OCCHER, S.A. DE CV 35,570,206 5.02%
BANCO SANTANDER, S.A. SULEYADO 2003, S.L 5,627,382 0.79%
BANCO SANTANDER, S.A. CANTABRO CATALANA DE INVERSIONES, S.A 5,762,982 0.81%
BANCO SANTANDER, S.A. CANTABRA DE INVERSIONES, S.A. 5,627,382 0.79%
MELQART ASSET 32,709,063 4.62%
MANAGEMENT (UK) LTD MELQART OPPORTUNITIES MASTER FUND LTD
INVERSORA CARSO,S.A.DECV | CONTROL EMPRESARIAL DE CAPITALES S.A. DE CV 30,509,047 4.30%
CARLOS FERNANDEZ 28,539,429 4.03%
GONZALEZ FCAPITAL LUX S.A.R.L.

(1) The percentages of voting rights have been calculated on the total voting rights in Prisa at December 31, 2020
(i.e. 708,650,193 rights).

(2) Mr. Joseph Oughourlian, external director representing significant shareholdings, has stated to the Company
that: i) the structure of his indirect stake in the share capital of the Company, through Amber Capital UK LLP, is as
declared in the previous tables and ii) he controls Amber Capital UK, LLP, which acts as investment manager to
Oviedo Holdings Sarl, Amber Active Investors Limited and Amber Global Opportunities Limited.

(3) As of January 2021, HSBC Holding PLC is no longer a significant shareholder of Prisa. HSBC Bank Plc is owned
by HSBC UK Holdings Limited which, in turn, is owned by HSBC Holdings Plc.

(4) The voting rights held by International Media Group, S.A.R.L have been declared to the CNMV by Shk. Dr.
Khalid bin Thani bin Abdullah Al-Thani, external director representing significant shareholdings, as an indirect
stake.

International Media Group, S.A.R.L. is 100% owned by International Media Group Limited which in turn is 100%
owned by Shk. Dr. Khalid bin Thani bin Abdullah Al-Thani.

(5) According to the information available to the Company, as of December 18, 2020, date of holding of the
Extraordinary Shareholders' Meeting of Prisa, Banco Santander was the owner, directly and indirectly, of the voting

rights that are that are reflected in the above tables.

(6) Melqart Asset Management (UK) Ltd. acts as Investment Manager for and on behalf of Melgart Opportunities
Master Fund Ltd, which is the direct owner of the voting rights.

(7) Inversora Carso, S.A. de CV controls 99.99% of Control Empresarial de Capitales S.A. de CV.
(8) Mr Carlos Fernandez Gonzalez controls the majority of the capital and voting rights of Grupo Far-Luca, S.A. de

C.V., the owner of 99% of Grupo Finaccess, S.A.P.I. de C.V., which in turn owns 99.99% of the capital and voting
rights of Finaccess Capital, S.A. of C.V. The latter controls FCapital Lux S.a.r.1.
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Additionally, as of December 31, 2020 and according to the information that is published on
the CNMV's website, the ownership of significant participations on financial instruments that

have Prisa's underlying voting rights is as follows:

Shareholder's Name

Number of voting
rights that may be
acquired if the
instrument is

Total % of Voting
Rights

exercised/converted
POLYGON EUROPEAN EQUITY OPPORTUNITY MASTER FUND (1) 7,090,807 1.00%
HSBC HOLDINGS PLC (2) 286,000 0.04%

(1) Polygon European Equity Opportunity Master Fund is a fund managed by Polygon Global Partners LLP.

(2) HSBC HOLDINGS PLC holds its stake through HSBC Bank Plc

Lastly, it is noted that in January 2021, the French group Vivendi, with investments in the
telecommunications and entertainment industries, has acquired 9.9% of Prisa.

b) Share premium

The Recast Text of the Capital Companies Act no specific restriction whatever regarding the
availability of the balance of this reserve.

As of December 31, 2019, the share premium reserve of Prisa amounted to EUR 254,180
thousand and it was totally unrestricted.

As mentioned in the previous section, the General Meeting agreed to apply the entirety of the
aforesaid issue premium reserve to partially offset the “negative results of prior periods”,
therefore, as of December 31, 2020, there is no share premium.

c¢) Reserves of parent company

Legal reserve-

Under the Consolidated Text of the Corporate Enterprises Act, 10% of net profit for each year
must be transferred to the legal reserve until the balance of this reserve reaches at least 20% of
the share capital.

The legal reserve can be used to increase capital by the amount exceeding 10% of the new
capital after the increase.

Except as indicated above, until the legal reserve exceeds 20% of share capital, it can only be
used to offset losses, provided that sufficient other reserves are not available for this purpose.

The General Meeting resolved to apply the entirety of the legal reserve account in the amount
of EUR 18,070 thousand to partially offset the “negative results of prior periods” of the
Company and reduce the share capital by an amount of EUR 7,087 thousand, by decreasing
the par value of the shares to increase the legal reserve account.
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The balance of this account at December 31, 2020 amounts to EUR 7,087 thousand (EUR 18,070
thousand at December 31, 2019).

Reserve for treasury shares-

Under Article 142 of the Consolidated Text of the Corporate Enterprises Act states that when a
company acquires treasury shares, it must record on the equity side of the balance sheet a
restricted reserve equal to the carrying amount of the treasury shares. This reserve must be
maintained until the shares are sold or cancelled.

The balance of this account at December 31, 2020 amounts to EUR 1,530 thousand (EUR 2,591
thousand at December 31, 2019).

d) Reserves for first-time application of IFRS

As a result of the first-time application of IFRSs to the Group’s consolidated financial
statements, certain assets and liabilities arose at January 1, 2004, the effect on equity of which
is included in this account.

e) Accumulated profit - From prior years

These reserves include the results not distributed by the companies that form part of the
consolidated group, minus the dividend charged to the year's income.

f) Treasury shares

The changes in “Treasury shares” in 2020 and 2019 were as follows:

Ejercicio 2020 Ejercicio 2019
Number of Amount Number of Amount
(Thousands (Thousands
shares shares
of euros) of euros)
At beginning of year 1,798,979 2.591 1,622,892 2,856
Deliveries (22,892) (58) -
Purchases 1,870,565 1,606 1,143,560 1,553
Sales (1,933,175) (1,626) (967,473) (1,303)
Reserve for treasury shares - (983) - (515)
At end of year 1,713,477 1,530 1,798,979 2,591

At December 31, 2020, Promotora de Informaciones, S.A. held a total of 1,713,477 treasury
shares, representing 0.242% of its share capital.

Treasury shares are valued at market price at December 31, 2020, 0.893 euros per share. The
total amount of the treasury shares amounts to EUR 1,530 thousand.

At December 31, 2020, the Company did not hold any shares on loan.
In July 2019, the Company signed an annual liquidity contract, which is solely intended to

encourage liquidity and regularity in the Company's share price, within the limits established
by the Company's General Meeting and by the applicable regulations, in particular Circular
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1/2017. In July 2020, through an Addendum to the original contract, the parties agree to
extend the term of the agreement for one more year, until July 2021. In the framework of this
contract, the Company has purchased a total of 1,870,565 shares and sold a total of 1,933,175,
and therefore the net sales in the 2020 financial year have been 62,610 shares and EUR 20
thousand.

g) Translation differences

The difference between the value of the equity translated at historical exchange rates and the
net equity position resulting from the translation of the balance sheet items using the closing
rate and the income statement items at the average exchange rate is recognized under "Equity-
Translation differences" in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet (see note 24d).

The translation differences are included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income in the heading "Translation differences”.

Exchange loss at December 31, 2020, amounted to EUR 92,275 thousand (December 31, 2019:
exchange loss of EUR 49,393 thousand). In 2020, the most significant translation differences
are generated in Colombia, Brazil, Mexico, Chile and USA by the evolution of exchange rates.

The detail, by business segment, of the exchange differences is as follows (in thousands of
euros):

12/31/2020({12/31/2019
Radio (24,633) (21,066)
Education (67,718) (27,554)
Press 23 (29)
Other 53 (744)
Total (92,275) (49,393)

h) Translation differences in accumulated profit from prior years

The accumulated profit from prior years includes the effect of the exchange rate on the
eliminations of the consolidation process of companies in which their functional currency is
different from the euro. These differences are included in the Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income, under the heading "Translation differences."

The detail, by company, of the translation differences in 2020 and 2019 is as follows:

Thousands of euros
12/31/2020(|12/31/2019
Radio (19,593) (12,438)
Education (72,447) (61,514)
Press 215 519
Other 31 (560)
Total (91,856) (73,993)
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i) Minority interest

The minority interest is the stake in the equity and income of the Group companies that are
fully consolidated. The changes in this line-item in 2020 and 2019 were as follows:

Thousands of euros
Translation . ..
Balance at | adjustment | Participation Cilcaongeezfm Dlv;?gr/lds Other Balance at
12/31/2019 |/ Monetary |  in results pe ot pai 12/31/2020
. consolidation | received

adjustment
Caracol, S.A. 11,183 (1,076) (2,044) . 1 @) 7,796
Diario As, S.L. 11,166 - (2,208) . 1,304)  (133) 7,521
GLR Chile, Ltda. 15,171 (349) (3,653) . 1,505  (282) 9,382
GruI:.)o'Sa'ntlllana Educacion Global, S.A. and 193 ©3) ) ] (15) 5 118
subsidiaries
Gru}l)o.Mn.adm Capital, SGPS, S.A. and 4711 164 (2127) (2,748) 1 ) l
subsidiaries
Prisa Radio, S.A. y and subsidiaries (Spain) 21,704 . (3,831), g 2,376 (62) 20,187
Other companies 5,628 (107), (422) 12 (3,195) (649) 1,267
Total 69,756 (1,431) (14,287) (2,736) (3,643)  (1,388) 46,271

Thousands of euros
Translation Changes in | Dividends
Balance at | adjustment | Participation | scope of paid/ Balance at
12/31/2018 |/ Monetary | inresults |consolidation| received 12/31/2019

adjustment Other
Caracol, S.A. 8,300 220 1,206 - - 1,457 11,183
Diario As, S.L. 11,945 - 1,043 - 1,631)|  (191) 11,166
GLR Chile, Ltda. 15,201 (856) 1,470 - (651) 7 15,171
Gru}')O.Sa.ntlllana Educacién Global, S.A. and 3,421 (74) 6,420 - (6,362)| (3,212) 193
subsidiaries
Grup.)o.M.edla Capital, SGPS, S.A. and 8,139 @ (2,906) ) ) ) 5,209
subsidiaries
Prisa Radio, S.A. and subsidiaries (Spain) 20,796 - 3,547 - (2,689) 50 21,704
Other companies 6,847 276 (1,300) 47 (147) (613) 5,110
Total 74,649 (438) 9,480 47 (11,480)| (2,502) 69,756

j) Capital management policy

The principal objective of the Group’s capital management policy is to achieve an appropriate
capital structure that guarantees the sustainability of its business, aligning shareholder
interests with those of its various financial creditors.

During recent financial years, considerable efforts have been made to maintain the level of the
Group’s equity. Since the signing of the refinancing agreement in 2013, the Group has
advanced in the debt reduction process using proceeds from the sale of 17.3% of Mediaset
Espafa, 56% of Distribuidora de Televisiéon Digital, S.A. (“DTS”) and the trade publishing
business, as well as with proceeds from the share capital increase subscribed by Occher and
with part of proceeds from the capital increase subscribed by International Media Group,
S.arl and through the issuance of bonds mandatorily convertible into shares via the
exchange of financial debt and issued in 2016 and finally converted into shares in 2017.
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Also, the General Meeting of Prisa Shareholders” held on November 15, 2017 agreed a series of
capital reductions and reserves aimed at adapting the Company’s equity structure. These
reductions were applied in November 2017. It also agreed a capital increase for EUR 450,000
thousand and, subsequently, expanded by the Board of Directors of Prisa on January 22, 2018,
for EUR 113,220 thousand. In February 2018, the capital increase subscribed and paid out in
an amount of EUR 563,220 thousand.

On June 29, 2018, the agreement reached with all the financial creditors of the Ouverride
Agreement (agreement to refinance the Group's debt signed in December 2013), to refinance
and modify the terms of Prisa's current financial debt, came into effect. Moreover, and as one
of the prerequisites for the agreement coming into force, the Company paid EUR 480,000
thousand of debt with funds from the aforementioned capital increase and with the cash
available to the Company.

Likewise, on March 20, 2019, the Company agreed to carry out a capital increase amounting to
EUR 199,824 thousand, which was fully subscribed in April 2019. This capital increase has
been used to partially fund the acquisition of 25% of the share capital of Grupo Santillana
Educacién Global, S.L.

On June 29, 2020, the Prisa’s General Shareholder Meeting agreed to reduce in share capital of
the Parent Company in order to re establish its equity balance (see section a).

On October 19, 2020, Prisa, through its subsidiary Grupo Santillana Educacién Global, S.L.U.
(“Santillana”), signed an agreement with the Sanoma Corporation, a European learning and
Finnish media company, for the sale of the Spanish educational business of Santillana
addressed at pre K12 and K-12 segments. On December 31, 2020, the transaction was close (see
note 3).

In October 2020, Prisa signed a lock-up agreement (the “Lock-up Agreement”) which
contained a term sheet that sets out, among other aspects, the essential terms on which the
Group’s syndicated financial debt restructured. On December 31, 2020 the refinancing
agreement came into effect, once the agreements reached with all of its creditors were
concluded, among which were included, the culmination of the sale of Santillana Spain
describe above. Prior to the Refinancing a debt partial repayment of EUR 417,000 thousand
was made, with the funds obtained from the sale of Santillana Spain and Media Capital (see
note 12).

As of December 31, 2020, the equity of the parent Company is greater than two thirds of total
share capital, which is why it was in a situation of equity balance at that date.
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(12) NON- CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

a) Financial investments

The breakdown by category of financial investments of the Group at December 31, 2020 and
2019 is as follows:

2020 -
Thousands of euros
Non-current financial assets at
amortized cost
Other
Loans and financial
. Total
receivables assets at
amortized cost
Other financial assets 5,460 5,033 10,493
Non-current financial investments 5,460 5,033 10,493
Other financial assets 2,869 4,849 7,718
Current financial investments 2,869 4,849 7,718|
Total 8,329 9,882 18,211
2019 -
Thousands of euros
Non-current financial assets at
amortized cost
Other
Loans and financial
. Total
receivables assets at
amortized cost
Other financial assets 9,411 11,254 20,665
Non-current financial investments 9,411 11,254 20,665
Other financial assets 989 3,751 4,740
Current financial investments 989 3,751 4,740
Total 10,400 15,005 25,405

Current financial assets

In 2020, the increase in current financial investments is mainly due to the recording of the
short-term account receivable for the amount of EUR 2,000 thousand framed within the
agreement to sell the credit rights held by the Group with Le Monde.

In 2019, the decrease in current financial investments was due mainly to the use of the deposit
of EUR 15,000 thousand to settle the unfavourable outcome of the dispute with Mediapro and

to the payment of the outstanding balances from the sale of Bidasoa Press, S.L. and the assets
of Santillana USA Publishing Co. Inc. in 2018.

57



&

< PRISA

Consolidated financial statements for 2020

Non-current financial assets

The changes in “Non-current financial assets” in the consolidated balance sheet in 2020 by
type of transaction were as follows:

Thousands of euros

Balance at Tr;zizzi; / C?Caor;)geezfm Addi/tions Disposals / | Balance at
12/31/2019 adjustment consolidation | ,jjowance Transfers | 12/31/2020
Financial assets at amortized cost 20,665| (950) 6 (762) (8,466) 10,493
Loans and receivables 9,411 (249) _ 2,404, (6,106) 5,46()
-Loans to associates 38,734 (1.036) - 930 (26,468) 12,160
-Long-term loans to third parties 2,250 (105) - 2,704 (414) 4,435
-Allowance (31,573) 892 - (1,230) 20,776 (11,135)
Other financial assets at amortized cost 11,254 (701) 6 (3,166) 2,360) 5,033
- Other financial assets at amortized cost 16,714 (861) 6 327 (1,656) 14,530
- Allowance (5,460) 160 - (3,493) (704) (9,497)
Total 20,665 (950) 6 (762) (8,466) 10,493

The variation in the heading "Loans and receivable" is mainly due to the reduction of the credit
to Le Monde net of allowance for the amount of EUR 6,790 thousand, offset by the addition of
the long-term account receivable framed within the agreement to sell the credit rights held by
the Group with Le Monde in the amount of EUR 2,679 thousand and the impairment of the

credit granted to Green Emerald Business, Inc in the amount of EUR 1,157 thousand.

The decrease in the heading "Other financial assets at amortized cost" is mainly due to the
impairment of a financial investment related to the participation of Prisa Radio in associated
companies in the USA for an amount of EUR 3,400 thousand.
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The changes in “Non-current financial assets” in the consolidated balance sheet in 2019 by

type of transaction were as follows:

Thousands of euros
Balance at Tr;r;i::;in / Add;tlons Disposals / Balance at
12/31/2018 a djustmeit allowance Transfers 12/31/2019

Financial assets at amortized cost 24,034 (126) (564) (2,679) 20,665
Loans and receivables 13,554 (252) (1,341) (2,550) 9,411

-Loans to associates 35,194 170 666 2,704 38,734

-Long-term loans to third parties 8,501 (358) 2 (5,895) 2,250

-Allowance (30,141) (64) (2,009) 641 (31,573)
Other financial assets at amortized cost 10,480 126 777 (129) 11,254

- Other financial assets at amortized cost 15,776 126 939 (127) 16,714

- Allowance (5,296) - (162) @ (5,460)
Financial assets at fair value with changes in
other comprehensive income 577 - - (677) -
Other non-current financial assets at fair value 577 - - (577) -
Total 24,611 (126) (564) (3,256) 20,665

The variation in the heading “Loans and receivable” in 2018 is mainly due to the short-term
transfer of the account receivable derived from the sale of radio companies in the USA by
GLR Services, Inc in 2018 for the amount of EUR 2,968 thousand.

The carrying amount of the financial assets does not vary significantly from their fair value.

b) Financial liabilities

The breakdown by category of financial liabilities at December 31, 2020 and 2019 is as follows:

Thousands of euros
12/31/2020 12/31/2019
Bank borrowings 810,568] 1,164,869
Financial liabilities for leases 99,203 117,006
Other financial liabilities 145 201
Non-current financial liabilities 909,916 1,282,076
Bank borrowings 102,746| 50,188
Financial liabilities for leases 18,462 23,675
Other financial liabilities 96 70
Current financial liabilities 121,304 73,933
Total 1,031,220 1,356,009

59



&

< PRISA Consolidated financial statements for 2020

Bank borrowings

The detail, in thousands of euros, of the bank borrowings at December 31, 2020, of the credit

limits and of the scheduled maturities is as follows:

Drawn-down Drawn-down
Maturity Limit amount maturing | amount maturing

at short term at long term
Syndicated loan Prisa 2025 752,896 | 752,896
Super Senior debt 2024 225,000 80,000 36,500
Credit facilities 2021-2023 39,481 4,389 -
Loans 2021-2027| 24,544 14,193 10,351
Finance leases, interest and other 2021-2024 8,950 4,164 4,786
Present value/ Loan arrangement costs 2025 ] 6,035
Total 1,050,871, 102,746 810,568

The detail, in thousands of euros, of the bank borrowings at December 31, 2019, of the credit

limits and of the scheduled maturities is as follows:

Drawn-down Drawn-down
Maturity Limit amount maturing | amount maturing
at short term atlong term
Syndicated loan Prisa (Tranche 2) November 2022 991,512 15,000 976,512
Syndicated loan Prisa (Tranche 3) December 2022 161,080 - 161,080
Super Senior credit facility 2022 116,500 - 36,500
Credit facilities 2020 50,300 20,185 -
Loans 2020-2023 13,384 8,155 2,872
Finance leases, interest and other 2020-2023 12,154 6,848 5,305
Fair value in financial instruments 2022 - - (17,400)
Total 1,344,930 50,188 1,164,869
The changes in bank borrowings in 2020 and 2019 were as follows:
Thousands of euros
12/31/2020 12/31/2019

Bank borrowings at beginning of year 1,215,057 1,225,782

Amortization / debt disposition (*) (334,643) 69,148

Loan arrangement costs (22,627) -

Fair value/Present value in financial instruments 46.072 5,428

Capitalizable fixed cost (PIK) 17,304 -

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes in debt (7,212) 373

Transfer g (86,044)

Others (629) 370

Bank borrowings at end of year 913,314 1,215,057

(*) Movimiento que genera flujo de efectivo.
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In 2019, the transfer is a consequence of the reclassification of the bank borrowings of Media
Capital under the heading "Liabilities associated to non-current assets held for sale" of the
consolidated balance sheet as described in the notes 1b and 10.

Of the total bank borrowings at December 31, 2020, 97.36% were denominated in euros
(97.42% at December 31, 2019) and the remainder in foreign currencies.

The nominal average interest rates on the Group's bank borrowings were 5.41% in 2020 and
4.54% in 2019.

Of the total bank borrowings at December 31, 2020, 96.75% were linked to floating interest
rates and the rest to fixed ones (98.63% to floating interest at December 31, 2019).

In accordance with IFRS 13, to determine the theoretical calculation of the fair value of the
financial debt at December 31, 2020 we used the Euribor curve and the discount factor
supplied by the financial entity and considering the actual credit risk arising from a report
provided by an independent expert regarding the transactions made in the secondary debt
market (level 2 variables, estimates based on other observable market methods). The fair value
of the syndicated loan, of the Super Senior debt and of the accrued interest pending to be
paid, according to this calculation, would amount to EUR 842,250 thousand at December 31,
2020 considering a 3.14% average discount over the real principal payment obligation to the
creditor entities.

Refinancing-

In October 2020, Prisa has entered into a lock-up agreement which contained a term sheet that
set out, among other aspects, the essential terms on which the Group’s syndicated financial
debt will be restructured, named Override Agreement (agreement for the refinancing of the
Group's debt signed in December 2013, which has been amended on various occasions since
then). On December 31, 2020, after the culmination of the sale of Santillana Spain, the
Refinancing came into effect, once the execution of agreements reached with all of its creditors
were concluded (see note 3).

Prior to the Refinancing a syndicated debt partial repayment of EUR 417,000 thousand was
made, with the funds obtained from the sale of Santillana Spain and Media Capital (see note 3).

Therefore, as part of the refinancing of its financial debt, Prisa agreed to the renewal of its
syndicated loan amounting to EUR 752,896 thousand (once the previous repayment was
made), which was structured in one section with the following characteristics:

- The amount of the syndicated financial debt was set at EUR 752,896 thousand and the
maturity of which is extended to March 2025.

- The cost of the syndicated debt is referenced to the Euribor plus a negotiated margin.

- Adaptation of the financial conditions of the debt to the group’s new position in terms of
generating cash. The agreed Refinancing allows Prisa to incur further senior-ranking debt
to strengthen its liquidity position in the future, and to complete certain actions of
business reorganisation.
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- Update of the package of debt guarantees.

- Finally, the basic terms include a relaxation of certain financial covenants and Prisa’s
commitment to achieving a leverage cap in September 2023 (4.25x Net Debt/EBITDA).
The average cost of debt is 7.1% including the Super Senior debt.

The refinancing agreement of 2018 involved a restructuring of the debt, which included a new
borrower, Prisa Activos Educativos, S.L.U., which assumed nominal debt of Prisa for an
amount of EUR 685 million, which, among other aspects, allowed part of the debt to be
allocated in the Education business unit, the main cash generating unit of the Group, in order
to meet the payments associated with the debt. The rest of the amount of the debt remained
recorded in Prisa.

Compliance with certain financial ratios is established in the financial agreements for the Prisa
Group, which have been complied with since the Refinancing came into force, according to
the ratios in force in each period. These contracts also include provisions on cross-default,
which could cause, if the breach exceeds certain amounts, the early maturity and resolution of
the contract in question, including the Override Agreement. Since the Refinancing came into
force no such breaches have occurred.

The Refinancing agreement also includes causes for early termination as is customary in this
kind of agreement, including the acquisition of control of Prisa, acquisition being understood
as by one or several persons together, with more than 30% of the capital with voting rights.

Finally, within the Refinancing agreement, and in relation to the distribution of dividends of
the Company, these are subject to the limitations and commitments acquired with the
financial creditors.

Other aspects of debt-
The guarantee structure for the syndicated financial debt is as follows:
Personal guarantees

Syndicated Prisa's debt, which correspond to the debt refinanced in December 2020, is jointly
and severally guaranteed by Prisa and Prisa Activos Educativos, S.L.U. and the companies
Diario El Pais, S.L., Distribuciones Aliadas, S.A.U., Grupo de Medios Impresos y Digitales,
S.L.U.,, Prisa Media, S.L.U., Prisa Noticias, S.L.U., Grupo Santillana Educacién Global, S.L. and
Prisa Gestion Financiera, S.L.U.

Guarantees

As a consequence of the Refinancing of December 2020, Prisa currently has certain owned
bank accounts pledged and, furthermore, Distribuciones Aliadas, S.A.U. and Prisaprint, S.L.U.
currently have pledges and promises of pledges, as appropriate, on certain credit rights and

on certain bank accounts held by them, all as security for the aforementioned creditors.

Part of Prisa's investment in Prisa Radio, S.A. (80% share capital) and the 100% of the
investments (100% share capital) in Prisa Activos Educativos, S.L.U., Prisa Media, S.L.U., Prisa
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Noticias, S.LU. and Prisa Gestion Financiera, S.L.U. was also pledged, thereby insuring
syndicated debt.

Super senior loan -

In addition to the syndicated loan mentioned above, the company signed a Super Senior Term
& Revolving Facilities Agreement for a maximum amount of EUR 86,500 thousand on June 29,
2018.

Of this sum, EUR 36,500 thousand were for the Super Senior Term Loan Facility, which was
drawn down during FY 2019 to finance the purchase by Prisa Radio, S.A., a Group company,
of the 3i shares in treasury stock.

The purpose of the additional EUR 50,000 thousand for the Super Senior Revolving Credit
Facility was to finance the company's operating needs. In April 2019, as a consequence of
buying 25% of Santillana, the amount for the Super Senior Revolving Credit Facility was
increased by EUR 30,000 thousand, to a maximum Super Senior debt amount of EUR 116,500
thousand.

The entire Super Senior Revolving Credit Facility, amounting to EUR 80,000 thousand, was
drawn down in March 2020 to meet operating needs associated with COVID-19, so, on
December 31, 2020, the drawn down Super Senior debt amounted to EUR 116,500 thousand.

On December 31, 2020, and within the framework of the current year's Refinancing, the
Company agreed to extend the limit of the Super Senior debt corresponding to the Super
Senior Term Loan Facility by EUR 108,500 thousand to cover operational needs, bringing this
Super Senior debt's total to EUR 225,000 thousand. The maturity of the Super Senior debt is
December 2024.

The guarantee structure of this Super Senior debt is the same as the one mentioned above
relating to the syndicated financial debt of the Company, in such a way that the creditors of
said debt and those of syndicated debt have the same guarantees. However, the Super Senior
debt has a preferential rank with respect to syndicated debt in relation to said guarantees.

Other aspects of the Refinancing

The Company has conducted an analysis of the conditions agreed upon in relation to the
Refinancing of its bank debt, concluding that they did not constitute a substantial modification
of the previous conditions, both from a quantitative and qualitative point of view. Therefore,
and in accordance with IFRS 9, the Group has derecognised the carrying value of the debt
subject to the Refinancing, recognising the debt again at the present value of future payments
calculated on the basis of the Effective Interest Rate "EIR" of the original debt. The difference
between the two amounts has resulted in an expense of EUR 37,217 thousand recognised
under the “Financial expenses” heading of the accompanying consolidated income statement
(see note 16). The difference between the nominal value of the debt and its carrying value,
together with the arrangement costs incurred in carrying out the Refinancing, is presented
under the “Present value/ Loan arrangement costs” heading by adjusting the “Non-current bank
borrowings” heading in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet, and which are
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recognised in the consolidated income statement for the duration of the loan using the
effective interest method.

Credit facilities-

Under this heading are included mainly the amounts drawn down against credit lines used to
finance the Prisa Group companies' operating requirements. Borrowing facilities maturing in
2020 total EUR 4,389 thousand and are recognized under “Current bank borrowings” on the
consolidated balance sheet. The interest rate applicable to these credit facilities is Euribor or
Libor plus a market spread.

Nature and risks of financial instruments
Credit risk

In relation to credit risk, the Group assesses the age of the trade receivables and constantly
monitors the management of the receivables and payables associated with all its activities, as
well the maturities of financial and commercial debt and repeatedly analyses other financing
methods in the aim of covering planned cash requirements in the short, medium and long-
term.

Liquidity risk

Businesses which rely heavily on advertising have a high percentage of fixed costs, and any
decline in advertising revenues has major implications for margins and the cash position,
making it difficult to implement additional measures to improve Group operating efficiency.
Likewise, the nature of the Education business means that there are concentrated periods of
collections around certain dates, mainly during the final months of each year. The
aforementioned creates seasonality in Santillana’s cash flow. While the seasonality of the
Group’s cash flow is not significant, so far as the flows coming from the various business units
largely compensate each other and thereby mitigating the seasonality effect, the
aforementioned could lead to certain cash tensions during the periods in which the collections
are structurally lower.

Likewise, the management of liquidity risk includes the detailed monitoring of the repayment
schedule of the Group’s borrowings and the maintenance of credit lines and other financing
channels that enable it to cover foreseeable cash needs at short, medium and long term. In this
respect, the Group has a Super Senior loan to meet operational needs and other subsidiaries of
the Group have credit facilities for that purpose.

Market risk - exchange rate

The Group is exposed to fluctuations in exchange rates mainly due to financial investments
made in stakes in American companies, as well as revenue and profits from said investments.

In this context, and in the aim of mitigating this risk, if there are credit lines available the

Group adheres to the practice of formalizing hedge contracts for exchange rate variations
(mainly forex insurance, 'forwards' and options on currencies) based on its monthly analyzed
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forecasts and budgets, in order to reduce volatility in operations, results and cash flows of
subsidiaries operating overseas in currencies other than the euro.

Market risk - interest rate

The Group is exposed to changes in interest rates as around 96.75% of its bank borrowings
bear interest at floating rates. In this context, the Group analyzes if is necessary to formalize,
based on its forecasts, hedge contracts for interest rate variations. The Group currently has no
derivative contracts for interest rates, in accordance with the forecasts of the evolution of the
reference interest rates.

Derivative financial instruments

The Prisa Group arranges derivative financial instruments with Spanish and international
banks with high credit ratings.

Foreign currency derivatives-

In 2020, the Group arranged foreign currency hedges in order to mitigate exposure to
exchange rate fluctuations.

In order to determine the fair value of the derivatives, the Prisa Group uses valuations
provided by financial entities by applying the group's credit risk provided by an independent
expert.

Nominal value
Fair val
Company Instrument | Expiry Thotggrtl)ds of Thoziigss of (thc?us\aliclllseof
euros)
Santillana del Pacifico, S.A. de Ediciones Forward 2021 329 270 (20)
Santillana del Pacifico, S.A. de Ediciones Forward 2021 243 200 0
572, 470 (20)

Analysis of sensitivity to exchange rates

The changes in the fair value of the foreign currency hedges arranged by the Prisa Group
depend on fluctuations in the EUR/USD and USD/CLP exchange rates.

Following is a detail, in thousands of euros, of the sensitivity (changes in fair value) of the
foreign currency hedges:

Sensitivity (before tax) 12/31/2020
+10% (increase in USD exchange rate) 2
-10% (decrease in USD exchange rate) )

The sensitivity analysis shows that the exchange rate derivatives shows increase in their fair
value, in the event of increases in exchange rates, while in the event of decreases in exchange
rates, the fair value of these derivatives would decrease.
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Liquidity and interest rate risk tables

The table below details the liquidity analysis of the Prisa Group in 2020 in relation to its bank
borrowings, which represent substantially all the non-derivative financial liabilities. The table
has been prepared using the cash outflows of the contractually stipulated maturities. The
flows include both the expected repayments and interest payments. When the settlement is
not fixed, the amount was determined using the underlings calculated based on the interest
rate curves at the end of 2020.

Maturity Thot:l::)l;is of Floa:iar;ieuro
Within 3 months 96,693 0.00%
From 3 to 12 months 44,660 0.00%
From 1 to 3 years 97,905 0.00%
From 3 to 5 years 854,787 0.00%
After 5 years 0
Total 1,094,045

Fair value of financial instruments: applicable valuation techniques and assumptions for measuring fair
value

The financial instruments are grouped together on three levels based on the degree to which
the fair value is observable.

— Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

— Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from
prices).

— Level 3: those determinable on the basis of valuation techniques, which include inputs
for the asset and liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable
inputs).

The Prisa Group’s derivatives are classified as level-2 derivatives.
Financial liabilities for leases
The application of IFRS 16 Leases implies the registered of financial liabilities associated with

the leases, amounting at December 31, 2020 to EUR 99,203 thousand in the long term and EUR
18,462 thousand in the short term.
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The detail of the maturities of the financial liabilities for lease is as follows:

Maturity Tho:f:;g;is of
Within 6 months 8,609
From 6 to 12 months 9,853
From 1 to 3 years 19,886
From 3 to 5 years 13,773
After 5 years 65,544
Total 117,665

In 2020, the payment associated with financial liabilities for leases amounts to EUR 27.1
million, included in “Other cash flow from financing activities” of the consolidated statement of
cash flow (EUR 29.0 million in 2019).

(13) LONG-TERM PROVISIONS

The changes in 2020 in "Long-term provisions” were as follows:

Thousands of euros
Balance at | Translation | Charge for Arz::;ts Transfers Balance at
12/31/2019 | adjustment the year /Disposals 12/31/2020
For taxes 3,384 4) 22 4) (20) 3,378
For indemnities 4,061 (339) 1,106 (1,289) (984) 2,555
For third-party liability and other 14,694 (1,238) 4,780 (4,143) (831) 13,262
Total 22,139 (1,581) 5,908 (5,436) (1,835) 19,195
The changes in 2019 in "Long-term provisions” were as follows:
Thousands of euros
Balance at | Translation Cilac)l;geez fm Charge for Arlx:;):;ts Transfers Balance at
12/31/2018 | adjustment consolidation the year /Disposals 12/31/2019
For taxes 8,698 - - 262 (270) (5,306) 3,384
For indemnities 5,425 9) - 1,113 (2,468) - 4,061
For third-party liability and other 14,444 19) (209) 4,342 (3,960) 96 14,694
Total 28,567 (28) (209) 5,717 (6,698) (5,210 22,139

In 2019, the “Transfers” column included EUR 5,800 thousand for the balance of the long-term
provisions of Media Capital as of August 31, 2019, the date on which the company's liabilities
were reclassified under “Liabilities associated with assets classified as held for sale” in the
consolidated balance sheet, as described in notes 3 and 10.

The “Provision for taxes” relates to the estimated amount of tax debts arising from the tax audit
carried out at various Group companies.
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The “Provision for indemnities” includes the provision booked in the previous years to record
the probable or certain responsibilities arising from workers' compensation to terminate their
labor relations (see note 15). In 2020, the Group booked an additional provision for this item of
EUR 1,106 thousand (December 31, 2019: EUR 1,113 thousand), has used EUR 551 thousand
(December 31, 2019: EUR 2,001 thousand) as a result of indemnity payments and commercial
paper issuances and has reversed EUR 738 thousands (December 31, 2019: 467 thousand). The
Group expects to use this provision in the next two years.

The “Provision for third-party liability and other” relates to the estimated amount required to
meet possible claims and litigation brought against Group companies and other future
obligations to employees. In addition, at December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Group had
ownership interests in companies accounted for using the equity method, the negative net
value of which is recognized under “Long-term provisions” in the accompanying consolidated
balance sheet, the detail being as follows (see note 8):

Thousand of euros
12/31/2020 12/31/2019
WSUA Broadcasting Corporation 1,172 1,249
Green Emerald Business, Inc. 3,064 2,878
Other 1,605 2,566
Total 5,841 6,693

In view of the nature of the contingencies covered by these provisions, it is not possible to
determine a reasonable payment schedule, if indeed there is one, or their financial effect.
However, the Prisa Group’s legal advisers and directors consider that the outcome of these
procedures and claims will not have a significant effect on the consolidated financial
statements for the years in which they come to an end additional to the amount provisioned in
the accounting records.
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(14) OPERATING INCOME

The breakdown of income from the Group’s main business lines is as follows:

Thousands of euros
2020 2019
Advertising sales 255,074 351,868
Sales of books and training 362,033 487,939
Newspaper and magazine sales 49,885 61,190
Sales of add-ons and collections 6,025 11,538
Intermediation services 4,259 5,648
Other services 13,666 18,995
Revenue 690,942, 937,178
Income from non-current assets 1,467 10,470
Other income 8,232 17,237
Other income 9,699 27,707
Total operating income 700,641 964,885

The most significant exchange transactions occurred under “Advertising sales” and the most
significant segment was Radio, whose exchanges with third parties amounted to EUR 2,014
thousand in 2020 (December 31, 2019: EUR 3,161 thousand).

In 2019, the heading "Income from non-current assets" mainly included the profit from the sale
of Radio Chile frequencies in the amount of EUR 4,850 thousand and the result of leaseback of
the Moderna building, owned to Santillana Administragao de Bens Prépios, Ltda., amounting
to EUR 3,649 thousand.

The following table shows the breakdown of the Group's incomes in accordance with the
geographical distribution of the entities that generated them (thousands of euros):

Advertising sales | Sales of books Newspaper and Total operating
and sponsorship and training magazine sales Others income
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
Europe 205,895 270,174 6,065 5,774 49,885 60,067 28,439 45,814 290,284/ 381,829
Spain 205,895 270,174 1,273 1,609 49,885 60,067 28,396 45,743 285,449 377,593
Rest of Europe - - 4,792 4,165 E - 43 71 4,835 4,236
America 49,179 81,694| 355,968 482,165 - 1,123 5210 18,074 410,357 583,056
Colombia 30,994 53,237 34,4520 35,272 - - 652 3,203 66,098 91,712
Brazil - -| 151,256 192,311 - - 689 2,748 151,945 195,059
Mexico 314 876 62,019 87,990 - 940 1,029 1,058 63,362 90,864
Chile 12,745 21,065 21,469 27,739 - - 1,515 5,686 35,729 54,490
Rest of America 5,126 6,516 86,772 138,853 E 183 1,325 5,379 93,223 150,931
Total 255,074/ 351,868| 362,033 487,939 49,885 61,190 33,649 63,888 700,641 964,885
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The following table shows the breakdown of the Group's incomes by type of client (thousands

of euros):
2020 2019
Advertising sales and sponsorship 255,074 351,868
Digital 63,317 70,121
Non digital 191,757 281,747
Sales of books and training 362,033 487,939
Public sales 101,412, 131,221
Learning system 136,770 142,294
Private sales 123,851 214,424
Newspaper and magazine sales 49,885 61,190
Digital 4,647 643
Non digital 45,238 60,547
Others 33,649 63,888
Total 700,641 964,885

The breakdown of the balances from Group contracts affected by IFRS 15 is as follows:

Thousands of euros
2020 2019
Trade and other receivables (see note 9b) 252,120 373,339
Allowances (see note 9b) (50,938) (56,814)
Other. current ¥1a‘.b111t1es— performance obligations 29,9671 35,767
pending to satisfied (see note 9e)
Provisions for returns (see note 15) 6,165 10,175

(15) OPERATING EXPENSES

Staff costs

The detail of staff costs is as follows:

Thousands of euros
2020 2019
Wages and salaries 203,452 238,087
Employee benefit costs 43,735 46,877
Termination benefits 8,972 10,340
Other employee benefit costs 11,848 14,259
Total 268,007, 309,563

The decrease in the cost of wages and salaries in 2020 is mainly due to the implementation in
this year of a contingency plan to save costs in order to minimize the adverse effects that
COVID-19 has had on the Group income (see note 1 b).

70



&

< PRISA Consolidated financial statements for 2020

The expense for compensation in the years 2020 and 2019 is mainly due to the adaptation of
the workforce to digital environments that continues to advance in media businesses and the
renewal of profiles based on the needs of the businesses, especially commercial profiles in
Santillana.

Transactions with payments based on equity instruments

Medium-Term Incentive Plan for the period between 2018 and 2020:

At the Ordinary Shareholders' Meeting held on 25 April 2018, a Medium-Term Incentive Plan
was approved for the period between 2018 and 2020, consisting of the delivery of Company
shares associated on one hand, with the performance of the stock exchange value and, on the
other hand, the achievement of certain objectives (non-discriminatory conditions) (the "Plan"),
aimed at the CEO of Prisa, the members of Senior Management and certain directors of its
subsidiaries, who may receive a certain number of ordinary shares of the Company after a
reference period of 3 years and provided that certain pre-defined requirements are met. At the
beginning of the Plan, the Company assigned a certain number of "theoretical shares"
("Restricted Stock Units") to each beneficiary, which will serve as a reference to determine the
final number of shares to be delivered.

The fair value of the "theoretical shares" assigned was determined according to the following:

o The fair value of the "theoretical shares" linked to the performance of the stock
exchange value of Prisa shares was determined using a known statistical model in
accounting practices on the date of measurement, which supposed a unit value of EUR
1.03246 per theoretical share. In this case, the total number of "theoretical shares"
assigned, which will serve as a reference to determine the final number of shares to be
delivered, is 5,600,000.

o The fair value of the "theoretical shares" linked to the achievement of certain
quantitative targets was determined by the market price of the share on the date of
measurement (considering the dividends expected during the Plan period), which
supposed a unit value of EUR 1.616 per theoretical share. In this case, the total number
of "theoretical shares" assigned, which will serve as a reference to determine the final
number of shares to be delivered, amounts to an additional 5,600,000.

The expense corresponding to 2020 is EUR 393 thousand (EUR 4,906 thousand in 2019) and is
recorded in the “personnel expenses” item of the consolidated income statement, with no
effect on the net equity of the Group, as it is a transaction settled with equity instruments,
which implies an increase in the consolidated net equity for the same amount.
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Number of employees

The average number of employees of the Group and the number of employees at December
2020 and 2019, by professional categories, was as follows:

2020 2019
Average Final Average Final
Executives 297 295 356 367
Middle management 988 992 1,121 1,140
Other employees 5,792 5,798 7,232 7,444
Total 7,077 7,085 8,709 8,951
The breakdown of the average number of employees, by gender, was as follows:
2020 2019
Women Men Women Men
Executives 112 185 118 238
Middle management 446 542 487 634
Other employees 2,847 2,945 3,445 3,787
Total 3,405 3,672 4,050 4,659
The breakdown of the number of employees, by gender, was as follows:
2020 2019
Women Men Women Men
Executives 109 186 127 240
Middle management 446 546 500 640
Other employees 2,840 2,958 3,546 3,898
Total 3,395 3,690 4,173 4,778

The number of employees of 2020 does not include the employees of Santillana Spain and
Media Capital Group, because as of December 31, 2020 those companies were outside the

perimeter of the Group.

During 2020 the average number of employees with a disability greater than or equal to 33%

was 23 (32 during 2019).
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Outside services

The detail of outside services in 2020 and 2019 is as follows:

Thousands of euros
2020 2019
Independent professional services 73,968 81,098
Leases and fees 5,147 6,225
Advertising 22,901 36,207
Intellectual property 20,891 24,897
Transport 21,744 26,041
Other outside services 106,231 183,505
Total 250,882 357,973

Inn 2019, the heading "Other external services" included the expense derived from the
unfavorable court order in the conflict with Mediapro dated March 29, 2019 for an amount of
EUR 51,036 thousand.

Additionally, this heading includes an expense of EUR 285 thousand corresponding to the
liability insurance of executives and directors (EUR 240 thousand in 2019).

The heading “Leases and fees” mainly includes those leases of low value assets, as well, other
fees (canon) of Santillana.

Fees paid to auditors

The fees for financial audit services relating to the 2020 financial statements of the various
companies composing the Prisa Group and subsidiaries provided by Ernst & Young, S.L. and
by other entities related to the auditor amounted to EUR 1,142 thousand (2019: EUR 1,607
thousand provided by the previous auditor Deloitte, S.L.), of which EUR 251 thousand relate
to Prisa (2019: EUR 297 thousand). In addition, the principal auditor has provided the audit
services to the Santillana Spain companies sold in 2020 for an amount of EUR 38 thousand.
Furthermore, the fees relating to other auditors involved in the 2020 audit of the various
Group companies amounted to EUR 16 thousand (2019: EUR 253 thousand).

In addition, the fees for other professional services provided to the various Group companies
by the principal auditor and by other entities related to the auditor (Ernst & Young S.L. in
2020 and Deloitte, S.L. in 2019), and fees paid in this connection to other auditors participating
in the audit of the various Group companies are as follows (in thousands of euros):

2020 2019
Principal | Other audit | Principal | Other audit
auditor firms auditor firms
Other verification services 367 12 861 96
Tax advisory services . 258 30 500
Other services 8 1,916 8 775
Total other professional services 375 2,186 899 1,371
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The fees for the detailed professional services provided to Group companies in the year 2020
by the auditing firms are registered under “Outside services” in the accompanying
consolidated income statement. The 2019 amounts include EUR 360 thousand of audit fees
and EUR 203 thousand of services provided to Media Capital Group and the Santillana Spain
companies sold in 2020. These amounts are registered in the 2019 income statement under
“Profit/loss after tax from discontinued operations” (see note 17).

Change in allowances, write-downs and provisions

The detail of the change in allowances, write-downs and provisions is as follows:

Thousands of euros
2020 2019
Change in operating allowances 6,409 3,465
Change in inventory write-downs 6,777 8,652
Change in provision for sales returns (1,456) 1,583
Total 11,730 13,700

(16) FINANCIAL LOSS

The detail of financial loss in the consolidated income statements is as follows:

Thousands of euros
2020 2019
Income from current financial assets 1,077 1,100
Income from equity investments . 174
Other finance income 1,290 2,313
Finance income 2,367 3,587
Interest on debt (71,112) (57,708)
Adjustments for inflation 801 1,730
Other finance costs (12,711) (19,831)
Finance costs (83,022) (75,809)
Exchange gains 30,557 45,834
Exchange losses (32,655) (49,814)
Exchange differences (net) (2,098) (3,980)
Change in value of financial instruments (46,072) (5,439)
Financial loss (128,825) (81,641)

As of December 31, 2020 the heading "Other finance costs" includes EUR 7,376 thousand for the
effect of updating the financial liability associated with the lease agreements (EUR 8,028
thousand as of December 31, 2019). It also includes the reversal of a provision for a financial
loan amounting to EUR 2,461 thousand.

As of December 31, 2019 the heading "Other finance costs" included the commission for the
execution of the guarantee for the Mediapro ruling in the amount of EUR 1,882 thousand.
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At December 31, 2020, the heading "Change in value of financial instruments" includes the
financial expense accrued (EUR 8,855 thousand) due to the transfer to the consolidated
income statement of the difference between the amount in the initial registration date of the
debt associated to the refinancing of 2018 and its nominal amount along the duration of the
debt, using the effective interest method, considering the effect of the syndicated debt partial
repayment made in 2020 and until the Refinancing came into effect.

Likewise, the "Change in value of financial instruments" heading includes the financial expense
accrued in 2020 for the transfer to the consolidated income statement of the difference
between the amount of debt associated with the 2018 refinancing at the date of initial
recognition and its nominal amount using the effective interest method and until 31 December
2020, when the 2020 Refinancing became effective (see note 12). It also includes an expense of
EUR 37,217 thousand arising from the entry into force of the Refinancing of its bank debt, for
the difference between the previous book value of the debt subject to Refinancing and its
present value after refinancing considering the discounting of future flows calculated on the
basis of the Effective Interest Rate "EIR" of the original debt (see note 12b).

(17) RESUL AFTER TAX FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

As of December 31, 2020, the headline “Result after tax from discontinued operations” includes the
following items, associated with Media Capital and Santillana Spain as described in note 3 and
10:

Media Capital

— Impairment was recorded for the loss resulting from the agreement to purchase
30.22% of Media Capital to Pluris (minus costs of the sale) in May 2020, amounting to
EUR 28,769 thousand (see note 3).

— An additional impairment was recorded for the loss resulting from the valuation of
Media Capital at the price of the sale agreement for the remaining 64.47% of the
Portuguese subsidiary (minus costs of the sale) in September 2020 amounting to EUR
48,522 thousand (see note 3).

— Reversal of non-materialised sales costs associated with the non-executed transaction
with Cofina and adjustments for the increase of non-controlling interests resulting
from the sale of 30.22% of Media Capital, amounting to EUR 419 thousand.

— The contribution of the result of Media Capital to the results of the Group during the
2020 (and until the loss of control), for a negative amount of EUR 15,013 thousand,
offset by the positive effect of the decrease in the net assets of Media Capital from the
same amount. Therefore, there is not impact by these effects.
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The breakdown of results of Media Capital is as follows:

(Thousands of euros) 2020 2019

Operating income- 104,458 164,965
Revenue 103,847 163,236
Other income 611 1,729
Operating expenses- (119,101) (214,399)
Cost of materials used (21,004) (23,094)
Staff costs (36,711) (42,875)
Depreciation and amortisation charge (7,877) (9,651)
Outside services (52,433) (81,432)
Change in allowances, write-downs and provisions (1,076) )
Impairment of goodwill - (57,342)
Profit from operations (14,643) (49,434)
Financial loss (1,908) (2,249)
Expense tax 1,538] (2,381)
Result after tax from discontinued operations (15,013) (54,064)

Santillana Spain

— Recognition of the capital gain net of costs arising from the sale of the Santillana Spain
companies for EUR 377,344 thousand (see note 3).

— The contribution of the result of Santillana Spain to the results of the Group during the
2020, for a positive amount of EUR 22,441 thousand.

For comparison purposes, the results of Santillana Spain of 2019 have been reclassified in this

section. The breakdown is as follows:

(Thousands of euros) 2020 2019

Operating income- 108,368 130,964
Revenue 106,868 128,163
Other income 1,500 2,801
Operating expenses- (84,970) (88,866)
Cost of materials used (16,530)|  (24,783)
Staff costs (41,605) (33,013)
Depreciation and amortisation charge (9,990) (10,562)
Outside services (15,110) (18,969)
Change in allowances, write-downs and provisions (1,712) (1,273)
Impairment of goodwill (23) (266)
Profit from operations 23,398 42,098
Financial loss 656 (933)
Expense tax (1,613) (8,281)
Result after tax from discontinued operations 22,441 32,884
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(18) BUSINESS SEGMENTS

Segment reporting is structured on a primary basis by business segment and on a secondary
basis by geographical segment.

The business segments were determined based on the Prisa Group’s organizational structure
at year-end 2020 considering the nature of the products and services offered, and the
customer segments which they target.

At December 31, 2020, Prisa’s operations are divided into three main segments:

— Education, which includes primarily the sale of educational books and the services and
materials related to the education systems;

— Radio, the main source of revenue from which is the broadcasting of advertising and,
in addition, the organization and management of events and the provision of other
supplementary services;

— Press, which groups together mainly the activities relating to the sale of newspapers
and magazines, advertising, promotions and printing. From January 1, 2019 this
segment includes the central advertising services and technology services.

The results of Santillana's business in Spain that are the object of the sale (see note 3) are
classified within the Education segment.

The column “Others” includes Promotora de Informaciones, S.A., Promotora de Actividades
América 2010, S.L., Promotora de Actividades América 2010 México, S.A. de C.V., Prisa
Participadas, S.L., GLP Colombia, Ltda., Vertix, SGPS, S.A., Grupo Media Capital, SGPS, S.A.,
Prisa Gestion de Servicios, S.L., Promotora de Actividades Audiovisuales de Colombia, Ltda.,
Prisa Activos Educativos, S.L.U., Prisa Activos Radiofénicos, S.L.U., Prisa Gestién Financiera,
S.L., Productora Audiovisual de Badajoz, S.A., Productora Extremefia de Televisién, S.A. y
Malaga Altavision, S.A.

Segment information about these businesses for 2020 and 2019 is presented below. The

column “Eliminations and adjustments” mainly includes transactions between group
companies:
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ELIMINATIONS AND
EDUCATION RADIO PRESS OTHERS ADJUSTMENTS PRISA GROUP
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019

Operating income 365,829 497,003 186,287 273,810 164,701 210,827 8,962 14,933 (25,138) (31,688) 700,641 964,885
- External sales 365,617 497,003 185,718 272,005 147,603 194,068 1,385 1,225 318 584 700,641 964,885

- Advertising 0 0 176,302 248,062 79,304 104,392 0 0 (532) (586) 255,074 351,868

- Books and training 362,033 487,949 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (10) 362,033 487,939

- Newspapers and magazines 0 0 0 0 49,885 61,190 0 0 0 0 49,885 61,190

- Other 3,584 9,054 9,416 23,943 18,414 28,486 1,385 1,225 850 1,180 33,649 63,888

- Intersegment sales 212 0 569 1,805 17,098 16,759 7,577 13,708 (25,456) (32,272) 0 0

- Advertising 0 0 179 1,600 2,102 1,644 0 0 (2,281) (3,244) 0 0

- Newspapers and magazines 0 0 0 0 6 0 0 0 6) 0 0 0

- Other 212 0 390 205 14,990 15,115 7,577 13,708 (23,169) (29,028) 0 0
Operating expenses (331,688) (426,237) (218,809) (230,592) (186,281) (210,380) (18,310) (75,936) 25,338 31,691 (729,750) (911,454)
- Cost of materials used (76,130) (105,594) (22) (62) (30,030) (40,161) 0 2 251 385 (105,931) (145,430)

- Staff costs (96,375) (120,318) (91,978) (103,408) (70,194) (73,374) (9,460) (12,455) 0 8) (268,007) (309,563)

- Depreciations and amortisation charge (41,945) (47,864) (17,797) (17,559) (9,662) (9,916) (1,234) (1,376) 1 ?2) (70,637) (76,717)

- Outside services (107,290) (135,277) (87,258) (107,025) (74,114) (84,642) (6,889) (61,541) 24,669 30,512 (250,882) (357,973)

- Change in operating provisions (9,005) (13,566) (2,155) 134 (543) (516) (28) 248 1 0 (11,730) (13,700)

- Changes in valuation allowances to Group companies 0 0 0 0 0 2) 7) 11 7 ) 0 0

- Impairment of goodwill/assets (943) (3,618) (19,599) (2,672) (1,738) (1,769) (692) (825) 409 813 (22,563) (8,071)
Result from operations 34,141 70,766 (32,522) 43,218 (21,580) 447 (9,348) (61,003) 200 3 (29,109) 53,431
Finance income 1,752 2,329 1,974 2,052 2,206 2,998 177,848 62,924 (181,413) (66,716) 2,367 3,587
- Interest income 454 1,049 1,831 1,771 2,136 2,839 13,542 14,728 (17,152) (18,579) 811 1,808

- Other financial income 1,298 1,280 143 281 70 159 164,306 48,196 (164,261) (48,137) 1,556 1,779
Finance costs (8,788) (16,626) (10,827) (9,060) (3,768) (6,155) (76,790) (68,796) 17,151 24,828 (83,022) (75,809)
- Interest expenses (6,695) (8,192) (1,955) (2,081) (3,376) (3,044) (76,235) (62,614) 17,149 18,223 (71,112) (57,708)

- Other financial expenses (2,093) (8,434) (8,872) (6,979) (392) (3,111) (555) (6,182) 2 6,605 (11,910) (18,101)
Change in value of financial instruments 0 0 0 0 9 (11) (46,064) (5,428) 1 0 (46,072) (5,439)
Exchange differences (net) (910) (3,389) (125) (563) (491) (144) (572) 116 0 0 (2,098) (3,980)
Financial result (7,946) (17,686) (8,978) (7,571) (2,062) (3,312 54,422 (11,184) (164,261) (41,888) (128,825) (81,641)
Result of companies accounted for using the equity method 0 0 (5,350) 3,115 72 (717) (0) 0) (3,180) 278 (8,458) 2,676
Result before tax from continuing operations 26,195 53,080 (46,850) 38,762 (23,570) (3,582) 45,074 (72,187) (167,241) (41,607) (166,392) (25,534)
Expense tax (27,458) (25,652) (5,873) (16,178) (9,058) (6,490) (38,681) (4/432) 1) 0 (81,071) (52,752)
Result from continuing operations (1,263) 27,428 (52,723) 22,584 (32,628) (10,072) 6,393 (76,619) (167,242) (41,607) (247,463) (78,286)
Result after tax from discontinued operations 400,979 32,884 0 0 0 0 (75,716) (131,817) (2,350) 4,401 322,913 (94,532)
Consolidated result for the year 399,716 60,312 (52,723) 22,584 (32,628) (10,072) (69,323) (208,436) (169,592) (37,206) 75,450 (172,818)
Non-controlling interests 2 (58) 973 (1,689) 2,001 (863) 0 0 11,311 (6,870) 14,287 (9,480)
Result attributable to the Parent 399,718 60,254 (51,750) 20,895 (30,627) (10,935) (69,323) (208,436) (158,281) (44,076) 89,737 (182,298)
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ELIMINATIONS AND
EDUCATION RADIO PRESS OTHERS ADJUSTMENTS PRISA GROUP

12.31.2020 12.31.2019 12.31.2020 12.31.2019 12.31.2020 12.31.2019 12.31.2020 12.31.2019 12.31.2020 12.31.2019 12.31.2020 12.31.2019
Assets 422,933 599,530 346,050 438,273 194,823 246,556 2,721,061 3,062,463 (2,713,148) (2,774,658) 971,719 1,572,164
- Non-current (except accounted for using the equity method) 147,874 226,428 203,416 244,663 67,545 87,888 2,228,221 2,362,362 (2,228,476) (2,317,591) 418,580 603,750
- Investments accounted for using the equity method 0 0 28,017 52,762 177 47 0 0 (3,515) (4,098) 24,679 48,711
- Current 275,059 373,102 110,655 137,009 127,101 158,621 492,333 589,656 (481,131) (619,291) 524,017 639,097
- Assets classified as held for sale 0 0 3,962 3,839 0 0 507 110,445 (26) 166,322 4,443 280,606
Equity and liabilities 422,933 599,530 346,050 438,273 194,823 246,556 2,721,061 3,062,463 (2,713,148) (2,774,658) 971,719 1,572,164
- Equity 205,123 237,911 189,551 258,148 (62,422) (34,194) 1,056,054 1,256,582 (1,791,286) (2,130,051) (402,980) (411,604)
- Non-current 35,314 52,391 74,505 79,511 44,114 51,915 1,239,922 1,334,692 (445,312) (186,666) 948,543 1,331,843
- Current 182,496 309,228 78,541 97,590 213,131 228,835 425,085 471,189 (476,531) (619,199) 422,722 487,643
- Liabilities classified as held for sale 0 0 3,453 3,024 0 0 0 0 (19) 161,258 3,434 164,282
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The next table breaks down the cash flow statement for the continuing operations by segment
in 2020 (in thousands of euros):

Cash flows from | Cash flows from | Cash flows from | Effect of foreign Chanee in cash

operating investing financing exchange rate flows ‘ign the vear

activities activities activities changes M
Education 61,504 376,633 (11,126) (11,329) 415,682
Radio 7,352, 7,938 (13,429) (1,124) 737,
Press (31,595) (118) (8,994) 0 (40,707)
Others 16,897, 41,406 (404,103) 0 (345,800)
Total 54,158 425,859 (437,652) (12,453) 29,912

The next table breaks down the cash flow statement for the continuing operations by segment
in 2019 (in thousands of euros):

Cash flows from | Cash flows from | Cash flows from | Effect of foreign .
. . . . . Change in cash
operating investing financing exchange rate flows in the vear
activities activities activities changes y
Education 71,533 (37,040) (91,888) 76 (57,319)
Radio 41,819 (35,988) (16,057) (53) (10,279)
Press 5,608 (7,848) (9,718) 20 (11,938)
Others (48,939) (288,105) 248,866 - (88,178)
Total 70,021 (368,981) 131,203 43 (167,714)

The next table breaks down the cash flow statement for the discontinuing operations
(generated by Santillana Spain y Media Capital) in 2020 and 2019 (in thousands of euros):

Santillana Spain
Cash flow_s from Cash flows from Casl} flow's from Change in cash
operating . . R financing :
A investing activities e flows in the year
activities activities
2020 50,874 (19,788) (5,699) 25,387
2019 53,098 (9,110) (3,787) 40,201
Media Capital
Cash flow's from Cash flows from Casl} flow.s from Change in cash
operating . . R financing :
S investing activities A flows in the year
activities activities
2020 6,570 (14,566) 7,996 .
2019 14,423 (9,568) (5,855) (1,000)
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The detail of capex for the continuing operations in 2020 and 2019 by business segment is as

follows (in thousands of euros):

2020 2019
ropertan | Inble | g | Fepey sl | nongble |
Education 10,432 24,440, 34,872 10,521 34,715 45,236
Radio 1,759 2,989 4,748] 4,940 2,425 7,365
Press 871 4,015 4,886 1,157 7,312 8,469
Other 837 68 905 296 205 501
Total 13,899 31,512 45,411 16,914 44,657 61,571

The table below shows a breakdown of the investments of discontinued operations, i.e. by
Santillana Spain y Media Capital in 2020 and 2019 with property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets (in thousands of euros):

Santillana Spain Media Capital
2020 2019 2020 2019
Property, plant and equipment 209 220 998 6,097
Intangible assets 7,360 8,561 249 617
Total 7,569 8,781 1,247 6,714

The Group’s activities are located in Europe and America. Operations in Europe are carried
out mainly in Spain. The activity in America develops in more than 20 countries mainly in
Brazil, Mexico, Colombia and Chile.

The following table shows the breakdown of income and the result before minority interests
and taxes of the Group according to the geographical distribution of the entities that originate

them:
Thousands of euros
Revenue Other income f;zf;;ll:ie:;r:;::aggg;
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019

Europe 284,335 368,804 5,949 13,025 (180,680) (123,103)
Spain 279,543 364,640 5,906 12,953 (184,300) (124,624)
Rest of Europe 4,792 4,164 43 72 3,620 1,521
America 406,607, 568,374 3,750 14,682 14,288 97,569
Colombia 65,703 89,633 395 2,079 99) 14,057
Brazil 151,285 193,375 660 1,684 24,749 24,088
Mexico 62,541 89,987 821 877 (48) 12,705
Chile 34,402 49,051 1,327 5,439 (12,462) 15,115
Rest of America 92,676 146,328 547 4,603 2,148 31,604
Total 690,942 937,178 9,699 27,707 (166,392) (25,534)
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The following table shows the breakdown of assets of the Group according to the
geographical distribution of the entities that originate them:

Thousands of euros
Non- current assets (*) Total assets
12/31/2020 12/31/2019 12/31/2020 12/31/2019
Europe 197,480 233,945 472,990 852,627
Spain 197,385 233,787 467,908 573,595
Rest of Europe 95| 158 5,081 279,032
America 192,723 281,601 498,729 719,537
Colombia 31,531 39,199 78,694 94,536
Brazil 67,269 91,324 165,562 274,291
Mexico 38,712 64,479 87,943 122,695
Chile 42,510 63,716 78,766 108,509
Rest of America 12,701 22,883 87,764 119,506
Total 390,203 515,546 971,719 1,572,164

(*) Include property, plant and equipment, goodwill, intangible assets, investments accounted for using the

equity method and other non-current assets.

(19) TAX MATTERS

In Spain, Promotora de Informaciones, SA, is subject to the special tax consolidation regime, in
accordance with the Corporate Tax Law, which is the dominant entity of the Group identified
as number 2/91 and composed of all those subsidiaries (see Annexe I) which meet the
requirements for this status by the regulations governing the taxation of consolidated profits
of the Groups of Companies.

GLR Services, Inc. also files consolidated tax returns in the United States together with its
subsidiaries that meet the requirements for application of this special consolidated tax regime.

The other Group subsidiaries file individual tax returns, in accordance with the tax legislation
prevailing in each country.

In financial year 2020, as in prior years, certain Group companies performed or participated in
corporate restructuring operations under the special tax neutrality regime. The disclosures
required by the tax legislation that arises from the application of the aforementioned
transactions are included in the notes to the financial statements of the related Group
companies for the year in which these transactions were carried out.

Also, in prior years, several tax group companies availed themselves of tax credits for the
reinvestment of extraordinary income under Article 21 of the repealed Spanish Corporation
Tax Law 43/1995. The disclosures required by this Law are made in the notes to the financial
statements of the corresponding companies.
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a) Reconciliation of the accounting profit to the taxable profit

The following table shows reconciliation, in thousands of euros, of the result of applying the
current standard tax rate in Spain to the consolidated net accounting profit of continuing
operations, calculated under International Financial Reporting Standards, to the consolidated
Group’s income tax expense for 2020 and 2019.

Income statement
2020 2019

CONSOLIDATED NET PROFIT UNDER IFRS BEFORE

TAX FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (166,392) (25,534)
Tax charge at 25% (41,598) (6,383)
Consolidation adjustments 24 16,830
Temporary differences 1,900 (277)
Permanent differences (1) 14,665 2,939
Tax loss carry forwards (921) (501)
Deductions and bonuses (251) (188)
Non-activation effect of tax income (2) 39,563 7,845
Effect of applying different tax rates (3) 2,871 4,492
Current income tax expense 16,253 24,756
Deferred tax expense for temporary differences (2,352) 277
Previous income tax 13,901 25,033
Adjustment of prior years' tax (4) 63,975 23,179
Foreign tax expense (5) 2,400 1,487
Employee profit sharing and other expense concepts (6) 795 2,120
Adjustments to consolidated tax . 934
TOTAL INCOME TAX 81,071 52,752

(*)Parentheses indicate income

(1) The permanent differences mainly arise from (i) the different accounting and tax recording criteria of
the expenses derived from certain provisions and certain assets, (ii) non-deductible expenses, (iii) the
negative adjustment that can be accounted for by the merger tax difference, attributable to 2018,
arising from the merger of the companies Promotora de Informaciones, S.A. and Prisa Television,
S.A.U. (absorption merger described in Note 17 of the Report of Promotora de Informaciones, S.A. for
the year 2013), and applying the requirements of the then current article 89.3 of the Tax Law to grant it
a tax effect, (iv) the minimum integration into five years of the reversal of the impairment losses on the
equity securities of entities that would have been fiscally deductible, established by Royal Decree-Law
3/2016 of December 2 (which generated an additional tax expense of EUR 3,304 thousand), (v) a
negative adjustment resulting from the recovery for tax purposes of one tenth of the amount adjusted
in previous years as a result of the limitation of the deductibility of amortization expense, and (vi)
from limitation of the deductibility of financial expenses outlined in article 16 of the Income Tax Law.

(2) This relates to the effect of companies that have not recognised a deferred tax asset because they
accrued losses in the year.

(3) This relates to the effect of taxation of profits from American subsidiaries at different rates.
(4) It refers to the effect on the income statement arising from the regularization of Corporate Income Tax
for previous years and the accounting record of the write-off of the tax credits of the tax consolidation

group.

(5) This relates to the expense for taxes paid abroad, which arose from withholdings at source on the
income from exports of services provided by the Group's Spanish companies abroad and dividends.
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(6) The P.T.U